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2004 2003 2002 2001

� �  ! FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

�� ! Financial Highlights

�� 1,574.5 1,279.2 1,040.1 889.9

�� ! 1,409.5 1,139.9 896.2 757.6

�� !"# 1.31% 1.88% 2.54% 4.25%

�� !"# 1.68% 1.87% 2.42% 3.64%

�� ! /�� !"# 142.23% 140.42% 136.46% 91.97%

�� 1,467.0 1,189.7 964.7 828.0

�� ! 1,274.8 1,064.4 869.0 748.5

�� !" 107.5 89.4 75.4 61.9

�� !" 10.50% 10.26% 11.58% 8.33%

�� 17.4 13.2 11.9 11.1

�� !" 31.0 24.4 19.5 15.4

�� !"#$ 1.22% 1.14% 1.23% 1.32%

�� !"#$%$& 17.68% 16.03% 17.36% 19.32%
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Total assets 1,574.5 1,279.2 1,040.1 889.9

Loans outstanding 1,409.5 1,139.9 896.2 757.6

Non-performing asset ratio 1.31% 1.88% 2.54% 4.25%

1.68% 1.87% 2.42% 3.64%

142.23% 140.42% 136.46% 91.97%

In RMB Billions

2004 2003 2002 2001

Reserve for credit losses to non-
  performing loans

Total liabilities 1,467.0 1,189.7 964.7 828.0

Bonds outstanding 1,274.8 1,064.4 869.0 748.5

Total owner's equity 107.5 89.4 75.4 61.9

Capital adequacy ratio 10.50% 10.26% 11.58% 8.33%

Net profit 17.4 13.2 11.9 11.1

Net interest income 31.0 24.4 19.5 15.4

Return on average assets 1.22% 1.14% 1.23% 1.32%

Return on average owner's equity 17.68% 16.03% 17.36% 19.32%

Reserve for credit losses to
  loans outstanding



6

2004�� !"#$%&'�(�� !"�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()�*+,-

�� !"�� !"�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0#123�� !�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%�� !"#$ !�� !"#$%�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#�� !"#�� !"#$%�� !"#��$�� !�

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012�� !"#$%&'(��

�� !"#$%&'()

2004���� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'�� !" #$%&'()�

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012"3�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+&,(-�� !"#$��� !"#$%&'(

��� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�� !"#$%&'()*+,

�� !"# �� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'



7

� �  ! GOVERNOR'S MESSAGE

�� ! Governor's Message
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During 2004 we commemorated the 10th anniversary of the founding of China Development Bank (the

“Bank”, or “CDB”). This important milestone served as an opportunity for reflection and an assessment of

our accomplishments, as well as the challenges that we will encounter in maintaining our relevance in a

rapidly changing economy. The facts with respect to the former are encouraging and undisputable. We are

proud to say that CDB has contributed enormously to the growth and development of the Chinese economy.

A decade ago, our activities were largely limited to relieving bottlenecks related to PRC government-directed

funding of infrastructure projects through policy lending. Over the past ten years, we have become the

most significant source of debt financing for infrastructure projects in China. More significantly, we have

introduced market-based principles into our underwriting and credit administration processes. This has not

only enhanced the quality of our loan portfolio, but it has also had the effect of instilling our borrowers

with financial discipline, improving our lending practices, and acting as a catalyst in the development of

modern financial markets in China.

CDB had a successful year in 2004 and we achieved our targets in a number of key areas. During the year,

we continued our policies promoting economic development, designed to support the PRC government’s

social policies. Among other things, these policies direct funding to targeted industries, such as coal mining,

electric power and petroleum. Similarly, we continued to target areas of social importance that have suffered

from funding bottlenecks, including China’s western region and municipalities. The sustained growth in

our business was most clearly evidenced in the disciplined increase of both on-balance sheet and managed

assets. This growth enabled CDB to continue to achieve record levels of profits. Asset quality improved

slightly in 2004, highlighting our commitment to disciplined growth. Our key financial indicators remained

at the levels consistent with those of leading global banks for the third consecutive year. We also continued

to improve the efficiency of our funding activities. The level of our bond issuances remained robust and our

introduction of innovative fixed income products were well-received by investors in search of higher yields

and diversification.

In terms of product innovation, risk management and business process improvement, I am happy to report

that we have re-doubled our efforts. During 2004, we introduced a number of new products, enhanced the

effectiveness of our risk management structure and improved the efficiency of our business processes. Our

goal is to achieve parity with international best practices in all key areas and maintain our viability in

financial markets that are becoming less regulated and more competitive, while effectively managing

increasingly complex risks. Through loan syndications and sales during 2004, for example, we provided

smaller banks with access to high-quality credit assets that they would not otherwise have had. At the same

time, this initiative allowed us to diversify our own credit exposure and effectively create more capital with

which to support higher levels of economic development in China.

�� ! Governor's Message
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In the midst of this commercial success, though, we have never forgotten our most fundamental objective

- supporting the PRC government’s social development initiatives through the financing of infrastructure

and other socially relevant projects, which will improve the living standards of all Chinese people. I am

proud to say, in this regard, that our social success exceeds our commercial accomplishments. Through

efforts made over the past decade, our focus has evolved from self-development to that of a catalyst for

national economic growth.

Our strong financial results

Again, in 2004, we continued our record of strong financial results, which continue to be consistent with

those of leading global banks in key areas.  Our net profit of RMB17.4 billion during 2004, another historical

high, increased 31.8% from 2003. While maintaining our capital adequacy ratio at 10.50%, we also enjoyed

a return on equity of 17.7%. Our total loan portfolio increased by 23.6% from a year ago to RMB 1,409.5

billion at year-end. We prepare our financial statements, included in pages 67 to 153 of this annual report,

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Unless otherwise noted, all financial

figures referred to in this annual report were prepared in accordance with IFRS.

Although we are not an organization that is motivated principally by profit, we believe that strong financial

results and the maintenance of capital in excess of limits recommended under the terms of the New Basle

Accord provide the strongest evidence of commercial viability, and is the foundation that will sustain our

continued growth and allow us to play a meaningful role in the future economic development of China. In

addition, world-class financial performance combined with our quasi-sovereign credit rating, give us a

market advantage in terms funding cost and access. Efficient access to low-cost funds, both internationally

and domestically, is an imperative to our sustaining the CDB franchise.

Shaping the financial services market in China

Our special status as a PRC government-owned development bank conveys to us many privileges and

opportunities, as well as special responsibilities. Our past success has largely resulted from traditional lending

activities, but our future success will depend on our ability to innovative in the market - customer-focused

products - and internally - business processes and risk management. As the Chinese economy evolves,

some of the advantages that we currently enjoy will be diluted, but our responsibility to support the PRC

government’s social and economic objectives will never diminish. In order to fulfill our responsibilities over

the long-term in a more market-oriented economy, we must increasingly collaborate with domestic

commercial banks; leveraging our privileges and opportunities. This will also enable these commercial banks

to efficiently and safely deploy their significant levels of liquidity that accumulated through historically high

savings rates in the Chinese economy.
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In 2004, largely through our successful loan participation and co-financing activities, we developed a full-

service commercial loan asset management business. Managed assets increased from last year’s RMB 13.8

billion to RMB 77.8 billion at the end of 2004. CDB, in our role as a market innovator, introduced loan

syndication and participation activities to China several years ago and we maintain an intense focus on

expanding both the volume and scope of this business.

The growth in our portfolio of managed assets provided us with the critical mass required to source assets

for securitization transactions. Like our syndication and participation activities, securitizations enable smaller

commercial banks to recognize high-quality credit assets and increase the funding opportunities available

to borrowers. Securitizations, though, also enable non-bank investors to invest in securities that provide

yields that are higher than other alternatives. In 2004, we completed several studies related to the

development of an Asset-Backed Securities (“ABS”) market in China. In this regard, we have been selected

by the PRC Government as one of the few pioneer banks to conduct such activities as soon as certain

market conditions established by our regulators are met. We are optimistic that the approval for the Bank

to commence securitization activities will come in 2005, and we are fully prepared to execute the first

transaction of this kind in China.

Lending to small- and medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs”) is another sector that, in the past, we had avoided

due to its inherently high risks. However, we believe that a thriving SME sector in China is not only an

important source of employment opportunities, it is commercially sensible to lend to enterprises in this

sector provided the related risks are properly managed. Helping to stimulate growth in this sector of the

Chinese economy will also relieve a number of social pressures currently facing the PRC government. In the

past year, we created a platform for SME lending that relies, to a large extent, on alliances with local

commercial banks to process the underwriting and administration of SME credits, subject to CDB’s standards

and oversight. Through these alliances, we are driving the fundamentals of effective credit risk management,

based principally on repayment history, to lower levels in the economy. In the past, funding bottlenecks

precluded viable SMEs from access to funds for their growth. We believe that the business process and risk

management platform that we have developed will enable us to properly control our SME lending activities.

At the end of 2004, our total SME portfolio reached RMB 4.5 billion, and we hope that our presence in this

sector will become a catalyst for larger commercial banks to increase their lending to this sector.

We are one of the leaders in the domestic debt market, not only through our role as the second largest

issuer of debt after the Ministry of Finance (“MoF”), but also as a bond underwriter.  At the end of 2004,

our cumulative debt issuance in domestic currency surpassed RMB 2.0 trillion  We also issued US$1.0 billion

global bonds, which were registered for sale in the United States of America (“US”) with the US Securities

Governor's Message�� !
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and Exchange Commission and also offered globally.  In addition, we issued US$500.0 million in the domestic

debt market. Through our bond underwriting activities, we make the domestic capital market accessible to

our clients, allowing them to raise funds directly at a reasonable cost. Our leadership in this area enables us

to explore additional opportunities for dis-intermediation to foster the broader development of China’s

financial markets.

Risk management

As our asset portfolio grows and we expand into new businesses, effective risk management is becoming

increasingly important in order for us to maintain our long-term viability. Since the majority of the risks to

which we are exposed relate to our credit portfolio, we continue to strengthen our credit processes. We

have developed a number of tools and methodologies related to underwriting and credit administration.

Of course, we have also maintained an intense focus on our rigorous collection efforts. Our NPL ratio

continued to drop in 2004, to 1.21%, and we are expecting this figure to further decrease by a small

margin next year.

Consistent with leading global banks, our NPL ratio has reached a stable level and we manage to strict

targets each year.  From 1998 to 2002, we had significant decreases in both the absolute and relative

amounts of our non-performing loans.  Since 2002, the ratio of our non-performing loans to total loans

has remained below 2%.  This level of non-performing loans is comparable to those of leading global

banks, including Bank of America, CitiBank, HSBC, and JP Morgan Chase.

Our current exposure to market risk is mitigated by the regulation of interest rates by the PRC government.

Of course, as this regulation is relaxed, we intend to develop appropriate processes to manage the related

risk.

During 2004, we improved our management of operational risk through advances to our IT system, budgeting

process and internal audit function. Although we have been making improvements every year, we plan to invest

significantly to build a state-of-art IT system which meets international standards. As a government organization,

we follow a rigid budgetary system and report to our parent, the MoF, on a quarterly basis. The Internal Audit

Department is responsible for the effectiveness of our internal controls. The routine post-origination evaluation

and audit performed by the internal audit staff on all major loan underwriting, all functional areas and branches

serve as powerful tools in our operational risk management.

Developing the best human resources and a common vision

Human capital is the most valuable resource to any organization. Given the significance of our challenges

and responsibilities, they are even more so for CDB. In this regard, we have made a commitment to the
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professional growth of our people that is intended to both build their skillsets and motivate them to follow

us down the path of successful development.

We have the largest team of industry experts in the Chinese banking industry.  Lending to key industries,

such as power generation and petroleum production, require a depth of industry knowledge to not only

enable us to manage the risks related to this specialized lending but also to provide relevant financial advice

to our clients. We believe that this advice not only makes our clients more intelligent borrowers, it promotes

the basics of an effective credit culture throughout the Chinese economy.

The extent to which we maintain our competitive advantage over the next decade will depend to a large

extent on how well we manage our human capital.  We continued to facilitate our 3-P Program (position,

performance and pay), which links the position and performance of employees directly with the financial

rewards of their remuneration. Our management was determined to make this change to demonstrate that

our Bank values merit and we will motivate our people to achieve our objectives through the 3-P Program.

We made special efforts in making this process as transparent and fair as possible to every employee of the

Bank.

We believe that developing a collaborative corporate culture is what will enable us to develop a common

vision around which we can focus our energy. Our management communicated the goals and strategy of

our Bank to employees at every level, and integrated objectives in support of this strategy into our employees’

that career development plans. We believe that it is only through the collaborative efforts of our employees

that we can compete in the fast changing economic environment in China and reach our goals of becoming

a leading global financial institution.

In order to maximize the professional development of our people, we have focused significant effort in

creating a learning environment, that is focused on intense training and secondments. We offer numerous

training programs both in-house and outside of the Bank. We made a large investment in these educational

programs during 2004. This investment includes sending study groups overseas to learn from our counterparts

in other countries. In addition, we made learning accessible by putting self-study courses on our office

network. Learning has never been as easy as today.

Confidence in the future

As I look towards 2005, I am committed to promoting the Bank’s robust and disciplined growth, so that we

can achieve both our commercial and social objectives over the long-term. In this regard, I am confident

that our people - who are the ones responsible for our tremendous success - will rise to the challenges that

we face together. I am grateful for their hard work and contributions.

Governor's Message�� !
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We will focus on areas, such as asset management, which allow us to increase our collaborative efforts with

China’s commercial banks.  We will also continue to make enhancements to our information technology

platform that will enable us to support continued product innovation, as well as to properly monitor and

control our growth. As I have said in the past, it is one of my priorities to introduce leading international

practices to all areas of our operations. We will maintain the relevance of our Bank by continuing to explore

new opportunities to expand our businesses and to influence the development of the financial services

market in China.

CHEN YUAN

GOVERNOR

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
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� �  SENIOR EXECUTIVES

�� Senior Executives

�� � �

Governor Chen Yuan

�� �� 

Vice Governor Liu Kegu

�� � �

Vice Governor Gao Jian

�� �� 

Vice Governor Yao Zhongmin

�� � �

Vice Governor Wang Yi
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Chief Compliance Officer Li Changfu
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Assistant Governor Zhao Jianping
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Assistant Governor Xu Yiren
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

�� Board of Supervisors

Representing the interests of the PRC government, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of CDB is appointed

by the State Council in accordance with the draft regulation on “Governance by Supervisory Board at Key

State-owned Financial Institutions”.  The Board is responsible for supervising and monitoring the

management, operations and financial performance of the Bank.  The Board consists of a chairman, two

full-time supervisors and several staff members.  It also includes one representative each from the Ministry

of Finance, China Banking Regulatory Commission (the “CBRC”), China Development Bank and a designated

public accounting firm, all of whom serve on a part-time basis.

� �  

�� !"#$%&'�()*+�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� �� !"#$����

���� !"#$%&'()*+,-./)01234�� !"#$%&�� !"#$�� !
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�� !�� !"#�$��� !"#$%&'()*+,-%&"./��� !"#$%�&'

�� !"#$%�&'(!)*+,-.

� �  ! " # $ INTERNATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL

The sixth annual meeting of our International Advisory Council (the "Council") was held in Paris on 12 July

2004.  Fourteen distinguished members and guests attended the meeting.  The discussion was focused on

the role that CDB should play in a changing environment.  Two spirited sessions were held, which provided

us with invaluable insights into our future development.

Session I - The Chinese Macro-Economy Today and its Relationship to the World Economy

Session II - CDB's Role in China's Economic Development: The Theory and Practice of Targeted Development Financing
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�� !"#$ International Advisory Council
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Assistant Governor of China Development Bank    Mr. Zhao Jianping (first from left)

�� !"#$% ��  �� !

Vice-Chancellor, the Chinese University of Hong Kong    Mr. Lawrence J. Lau (second from left)
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Senior Advisor of Development Bank of Singapore    Mr. Ng Kee Choe (third from left)
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Deputy Secretary-General, China Macroeconomic Society    Mr. Cao Yushu (fourth from left)
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Former Vice President of World Bank, CEO of EMP USA    Mr. Shahid Javed Burki (fifth from left)
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Chairman of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission    Mr. Andrew L. T. Sheng (sixth from left)

�� !"#$% ��  �� !

President, JP Morgan Chase International, USA    Mr. Andrew Crockett (seventh from left)

�� !"#$ �� !��� �� !

Former Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry of France    Mr. D. Strauss-Kahn (eighth from left)
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Former Ambassador of Switzerland to China, Switzerland    Mr. Uli Sigg (first from left)

�� !"#!$%&'()*+ ����� (��)

Advisor of HSBC Republic Bank and PwC, U. K.    Mr. Peter Cooke (second from left)

�� !"#$%&'() �����  �� !

Former Chairman of Board of Governors of Federal Reserve System, USA    Mr. Paul Volcker (third from left)

�� !"##$ ��  (��)

Governor of China Development Bank    Mr. Chen Yuan (fourth from left)

�� !"#$%&' �� ��� ! -��  �� !

Deputy Chairman of BNP Paribas, France    Mr. Michel Francois-Poncet (fifth from left)

�� !"#$%&'( ����� �� !

Chairman of Board of Managing Directors, KfW, Germany    Mr. Hans W. Reich (sixth from left)

�� !"#$%&'()*�� ! ��  �� !

Senior Advisor of the Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Japan    Mr. Tasuku Takagaki (seventh from left)
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Our primary source of revenue is net interest income, which is essentially the difference between interest

income earned on loans and interest expense owed on our debt.  As interest rates are regulated by the

PBOC and we endeavor to match the repricings of our loans and debt, we do not believe that the Bank has

significant exposure to changes in domestic interest rates.  To manage the risk of foreign currency interest

rate changes, among other things, we have entered into interest rate swaps and collars with other financial

institutions to hedge the risk to interest rate changes economically.

Other sources of revenue include dividend income, gains on investments, and commissions and fees.  Dividend

income and gains on investments are principally related to equity investment holdings that were acquired

through debt-to-equity swaps with borrowers. The debt-to-equity swaps were conducted at the direction

of PRC Government in past years.  We are actively engaged in the resolution and disposition of these equity

investments, which in some cases, require approval from the PRC Government. As part of our continuing

efforts to more efficiently deploy our capital, we are committed to seeking opportunities to increase

commission and fee income, through such initiatives as the expansion of our asset management services.

�� ! Financial Analysis

� �  ! FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

�� !"#$%&'()*+,%&-�� !"#$%&'� !"()*� +,-./0�� 

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'(�)*+,-.*+/01234�

�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.'(/�� !"#$% &'�� !"#$ %&'()*+

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01'2.3�� !"#$%�� !"#$

�� !"#�� !"�� !"#�$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'(
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�� !

�� !"# 2004 2003 �� �� !%

�� ! 71,994 59,167 12,827 21.7%

�� ! (40,953) (34,747) (6,206) 17.9%

�� !"# 31,041 24,420 6,621 27.1%

�� !"#$ 290 116 174 150.0%

�� ! 833 1,644 (811) (49.3%)

�� !�� ! 2,103 (821) 2,924 (356.2%)

�� !"# (3,688) (2,829) (859) 30.4%

�� ! (5,078) (4,266) (812) 19.0%

���� !�� (204) 203 (407) (200.5%)

�� ! 25,297 18,467 6,830 37.0%

�� (7,888) (5,255) (2,633) 50.1%

�� 17,409 13,212 4,197 31.8%

2004�� �� !"#$%&'()*253�� � 2003�� !"# 68�� �� 37.0%���

�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()�� 2003�� !"# 11,399�� !" 2004�� !"#

14,095�� �� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'�()*"+,-�� �� !"

���� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'()
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Earnings

�� ! Financial Analysis

In 2004, the Bank's pre-tax earnings were a record high RMB 25.3 billion, up by RMB 6.8 billion, or 37.0%

from 2003.  The increase was principally due to the growth of our loan portfolio from RMB 1,139.9 billion

at the end of 2003 to RMB 1,409.5 billion in 2004, and gains on disposal of equity investments. The

disposal of equity investments also led to a decrease in dividend income.  It is important to note that the

growth in our loan portfolio was achieved without any deterioration in asset quality.

RMB in million 2004 2003 change change%

Interest income 71,994 59,167 12,827 21.7%

Interest expense (40,953) (34,747) (6,206) 17.9%

Net interest income 31,041 24,420 6,621 27.1%

Net fee and commission income 290 116 174 150.0%

Dividend income 833 1,644 (811) (49.3%)

Gains (Losses) on investment

  securities, net 2,103 (821) 2,924 (356.2%)

Provision for credit losses (3,688) (2,829) (859) 30.4%

Operating expenses (5,078) (4,266) (812) 19.0%

Other income (expenses), net (204) 203 (407) (200.5%)

Profit before tax 25,297 18,467 6,830 37.0%

Income tax expense (7,888) (5,255) (2,633) 50.1%

Net profit 17,409 13,212 4,197 31.8%
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�� !"#

�� !

�� 68,780 56,565 12,215 21.6%

�� ! 2,250 2,250 - -

�� !"# 291 202 89 44.1%

�� ! 622 76 546 718.4%

�� 51 74 (23) (31.1%)

71,994 59,167 12,827 21.7%

�� !

�� !"#$ ! 36,600 31,438 5,162 16.4%

�� !"#$%&' 3,739 2,918 821 28.1%

�� !"#$%& 613 387 226 58.4%

�� 1 4 (3) (75.0%)

40,953 34,747 6,206 17.9%

�� !"# 31,041 24,420 6,621 27.1%

2004�� !"#$%&'(21.6%��� !"#$%&'()*+25.4%�� !�� !"#$�

�� !"#$%& 2003�� !"#2004� 10� 29�� !"#$%&'() 27 bp��� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

� 2003�� !�� !"#$%& 17.9%��� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345

�� !"# 2004 2003 �� �� !%
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Net interest income

�� ! Financial Analysis

Interest income on loans increased by 21.6% in 2004, due principally to a 25.4% growth in our average

loan balance during the year. The average interest rate for loans decreased slightly in comparison with that

of 2003 as a result of increasing competition. The PBOC raised its benchmark interest rate by 27 basis

points on 29 October, 2004, but this did not have a significant impact on our interest income.

Compared with 2003, total interest expense increased by 17.9%, which was consistent with level of bond

issuance throughout the year required to fund our loan growth.

RMB in million 2004 2003 change change%

Interest income

Loans 68,780 56,565 12,215 21.6%

Cinda bonds 2,250 2,250 - -

Balance with the PBOC 291 202 89 44.1%

Investment securities 622 76 546 718.4%

Other 51 74 (23) (31.1%)

71,994 59,167 12,827 21.7%

Interest expense

Debt securities in issue and

   subordinated debts 36,600 31,438 5,162 16.4%

Borrowings from other banks

   and governments 3,739 2,918 821 28.1%

Due to customers and banks 613 387 226 58.4%

Other 1 4 (3) (75.0%)

40,953 34,747 6,206 17.9%

Net interest income 31,041 24,420 6,621 27.1%
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Dividend income

Dividend income represents dividend distributions in connection with our equity investments.   These equity

investments are principally related to debt-to-equity swaps, which occurred in past years at the direction of

the PRC Government.  Since we acquired these investments, we have been active in their disposal and

resolution.  Dividend income every year is affected by the financial performance and dividend distribution

policies of the underlying companies, as well as the levels of our holdings.  The decrease of 49.3% in 2004

was mainly due to the reduction in our holdings of equity investments from RMB 20.8 billion at the end of

2003 to RMB 8.1 billion at the end of 2004.

�� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+�,-./0)��123�� !"#$%&'()*+,!-./01

�� !"#$�� !"#$%�� !"#$%& '()*+,�� !"#$%&' !()*

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01232004�� !"#$%49.3%��� !"2004

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$2003�� !"208�� !"2004�� !"81

�� 

�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+, 1.74�� �� 150.0%��� !"#$% 2004�� !"#$

�� !�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'()*+,-. /01

Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income increased by RMB 174 million, or 150.0% from the prior year.  This increase

was the result of the Bank's strategy of promoting our asset management business.  Our growth in this

business resulted, to a large extent, from increased loan participations and the management of loans for

other financial institutions.
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During 2004, we realised gains of RMB 2.1 billion on sales of investment securities, as compared to a loss

of RMB 0.8 billion in 2003.  These gains related largely to disposals of equity investments with a carrying value

of RMB 13.9 billion in a favourable market.

Gains (Losses) on investment securities

���� !��

�� ! Financial Analysis

�� !�� !

2004���� !"#$%21�� !"#$2003�� !"#$%&'()8�� �� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-. /012 139�� !"#$%

�� !"#�� �

�� !" 274 193 81 42.0%

�� !"#$ (478) 10 (488) (4880.0%)

(204) 203 (407) (200.5%)

�� !"# 2004 2003 �� �� !%

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789:;<)=>? !2@ABCD�� 

�� !�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'()%&*+,-./0�� !"#$%

2004�� !"#$%&'
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�� ! 538 398 140 35.2%

�� !" 90 88 2 2.3%

�� !"#$ 157 157 - -

�� !"#$ 3,528 2,938 590 20.1%

�� !"# 279 237 42 17.7%

�� 486 448 38 8.48%

5,078 4,266 812 19.0%

�� !"# 2004 2003 �� �� !%

RMB in million 2004 2003 change change%

Realised and unrealised gains on

derivatives 274 193 81 42.0%

Foreign exchange (losses)

gains and other (478) 10 (488) (4880.0%)

(204) 203 (407) (200.5%)

Other income (expenses)

Other income is comprised largely of net changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments and

trading securities held by the Bank, as well as net exchange gains or losses.  As a matter of policy, our

derivatives activities are limited principally to hedging foreign exchange and interest rate exposure.  As in

prior years, these activities were not significant in 2004.

2004�� !"#$%&' 2003�� ! 19.0%��� !" 50.78�� �� !"#$%&'()

��  !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0 123456�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./&0123&4

�� !
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RMB in million 2004 2003 change change%

Operating expenses were up by 19.0% from 2003 to RMB 5.1 billion. This increase was consisted principally

of increases in business tax and surcharges.   These increases were related directly to increases on our

revenue and staff costs.  The growth in staff costs reflects the growth in our workforce.

Staff costs 538 398 140 35.2%

Occupancy 90 88 2 2.3%

Depreciation and amortisation 157 157 - -

Business tax and surcharges 3,528 2,938 590 20.1%

Administration expenses 279 237 42 17.7%

Other 486 448 38 8.48%

5,078 4,266 812 19.0%

Operating expenses

�� ! Financial Analysis
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�� ! 1,574,482 1,279,167 295,315 23.1%

�� ! 1,409,479 1,139,938 269,541 23.6%

 -�� 1,408,154 1,138,099 270,055 23.7%

   -�� ! 1,325 1,839 (514) (27.9%)

�� !"�� 103,154 103,016 138 0.1%

�� 44,071 29,890 14,181 47.4%

�� ! 1,467,009 1,189,738 277,271 23.3%

�� !"#$%&' 83,612 51,046 32,566 63.8%

�� ! 1,254,825 1,064,406 190,419 17.9%

   -�� !"#$% 1,236,795 1,055,084 181,711 17.2%

   -�� !"#$% 18,030 9,322 8,708 93.4%

�� ! 20,006 - 20,006 -

�� !"#$ 107,473 89,429 18,044 20.2%

�� ! 50,000 50,000 - -

�� !"# 2004 2003 �� �� !%

�� !
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�� ! Financial Analysis

RMB in million 2004 2003 change change%

Total assets 1,574,482 1,279,167 295,315 23.1%

  Loan balance 1,409,479 1,139,938 269,541 23.6%

    -Loans to customers 1,408,154 1,138,099 270,055 23.7%

    -Loans to banks 1,325 1,839 (514) (27.9%)

  Cinda bonds, net 103,154 103,016 138 0.1%

  Investment securities 44,071 29,890 14,181 47.4%

Total liabilities 1,467,009 1,189,738 277,271 23.3%

  Borrowings from other banks

and governments 83,612 51,046 32,566 63.8%

  Debt securities in issue 1,254,825 1,064,406 190,419 17.9%

    -Bonds issued in the

        domestic market 1,236,795 1,055,084 181,711 17.2%

    - Bonds issued in

        overseas markets 18,030 9,322 8,708 93.4%

  Subordinated debts 20,006 - 20,006 -

Total owner's equity 107,473 89,429 18,044 20.2%

  Paid-in capital 50,000 50,000 - -

Financial Positions

�� !

�� !"#$%& 28,576 1.8% 16,143 1.3%

�� �� 1,389,186 88.2% 1,120,885 87.6%

�� !"�� 103,154 6.6% 103,016 8.1%

�� 44,071 2.8% 29,890 2.3%

�� 9,495 0.6% 9,233 0.7%

1,574,482 100% 1,279,167 100%

�� !"# 2004 ��(%) 2003 ��(%)
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At the end of 2004, total assets of the Bank amounted to RMB 1,574.5 billion, up by 23.1% from 2003. Our

outstanding balance of loans, the majority of our assets, increased significantly by 23.6% during the year.

The Bank's lending operations, the principal means through which we fulfill our commercial and social

responsibilities, are the core of our activities.  It is our intention to promote the continued growth of our

loan portfolio within the guidelines established by the PRC Government. In response to directives by the

PRC Government, we tightened credit and intensified our focus on lending to targeted industries in 2004.

In order to maintain a proper level of liquidity, the Bank increased short-term investments in 2004, especially

investments in PBOC treasury bills.

Asset structure

RMB in million 2004 Composition(%) 2003 Composition(%)

Cash and balance with

the PBOC 28,576 1.8% 16,143 1.3%

Loans, net 1,389,186 88.2% 1,120,885 87.6%

Cinda bonds, net 103,154 6.6% 103,016 8.1%

Investment securities 44,071 2.8% 29,890 2.3%

Other 9,495 0.6% 9,233 0.7%

1,574,482 100% 1,279,167 100%

�� 2004�� �� !"#$%&'()*15,744.8�� � 2003�� ! 23.1%��� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*"#& 2003�� ! 23.6%�

�� !"#$%&'()*+, !-�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%�&

�� !"�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'"()*+,-

�� !"#$%&'2004�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*+
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RMB in million 2004 Composition(%) 2003 Composition(%)

Debt securities in issue 1,254,825 85.5% 1,064,406 89.5%

Subordinated debts 20,006 1.4% - -

Borrowings from other banks

   and governments 83,612 5.7% 51,046 4.3%

Customer deposits 95,935 6.5% 65,743 5.5%

Other 12,631 0.9% 8,543 0.7%

1,467,009 100% 1,189,738 100%

Total liabilities at the end of 2004 amounted to RMB 1,467 billion, up by RMB 277.3 billion or 23.3% from

the prior year. While our principal source of funding is the issuance of bonds in domestic and overseas

capital markets, borrowing from the PBOC and other financial institutions is a supplemental source of

funds and is also integral to our relationships with these institutions.

Liability structure

2004���� !"#$% 14,670.�� !�� !"#$%& 2,772.7�� �� 23.3%���

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�123�� !"#$%&'()*+,-&./01

���� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012

�� ! 1,254,825 85.5% 1,064,406 89.5%

�� ! 20,006 1.4% - -

�� !"#$%&' 83,612 5.7% 51,046 4.3%

�� ! 95,935 6.5% 65,743 5.5%

�� ! 12,631 0.9% 8,543 0.7%

1,467,009 100% 1,189,738 100%

�� !"# 2004 ��(%) 2003 ��(%)

�� !

�� ! Financial Analysis
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�� ! 1,254,825 1,064,406 190,419 17.9%

-�� !"#$% 1,236,795 1,055,084 181,711 17.2%

-�� !"#$% 18,030 9,322 8,708 93.4%

�� ! 20,006 - 20,006 -

1,274,831 1,064,406 210,425 19.8%

�� !"# 2004 2003 �� �� !%

Total bonds in issuance during 2004 increased to RMB 1,274.8 billion, or 19.8%, from RMB 1,064.4 billion

in 2003.  This increase reflected the growth in our loan funding needs.

Bond issuance

RMB in million 2004 2003 Change Change(%)

Debt securities in issue 1,254,825 1,064,406 190,419 17.9%

   -Bonds issued in the

   domestic market 1,236,795 1,055,084 181,711 17.2%

   -Bonds issued in

   overseas markets 18,030 9,322 8,708 93.4%

Subordinated debts 20,006 - 20,006 -

1,274,831 1,064,406 210,425 19.8%

�� !" 2003�� !"# 10,644.1�� !" 2004�� !"# 12,748.3��,�� 19.8%��

�� !"#$%&'()*+,�-.

�� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+",-./01234"56789:�� �� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$8%�� !"#2004�� !" "#$%&200�� !"#$�� !"#$2004

�� �� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'( 10.50%.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

It is the Bank's objective to maintain sufficient capital to absorb unexpected losses and meet its obligations.

In this regard, we are committed, at a minimum, to maintaining a capital adequacy ratio in excess of the

8% recommended under the New Basle Accord.  In 2004, we issued subordinated debt of RMB 20 billion,

which qualified as supplementary capital.  At the end of 2004, our capital adequacy ratio stood at 10.50%,

calculated based on the current guidelines established by the PBOC.

�� !
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�� !"#$ Our Growing Business

� �  ! " # $ OUR GROWING BUSINESS

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,-. -�� !"!#$%&'()*+,-./

�� �� �� !"#$%&'()*+&,-./0�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"

�� !"#$%&'

2004�� !"#$%&'()*�+�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234,�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%

���� !"#$%&'()*+,-. /0�� �� !"#$%&

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123'45678

2004 ���� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�23$456�� !"#$%&�� !"

�� !"#�� !2004�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#,��700.7%��� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� 2004�� ! 13�� 3�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$2004�� !"#$%&"'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./2004 ���� !"#

�� 5�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345�� !"#$%&'()$*+,-.

���� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.%&'/�� !"#$%�� ! 2005 �

�� !"#$

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,)-./0123456789:;�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789:�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.

�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� �� !"#$%&'&()*+,-./012345(67

�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'("#)*)+,-./�� !"#$%&�� !"#

�� !�"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()

� �

O v e r v i e w

During the past decade of innovation and evolution, we have developed a simple business philosophy that includes

two fundamental elements - (i) rigorous dedication to supporting the PRC government’s infrastructure development

and social objectives and (ii) the pursuit of commercial viability to maximize our funding capacity, act as a catalyst in

the development of modern financial markets in China and sustain our franchise in the long-term.  In this regard, we

closely monitor changes in the PRC government’s macro-economic policies and the evolution of market trends.



35

Economic growth in China continued unabated in 2004 and was accompanied by sustained increases in

infrastructure investments in key industries and regions.  While this growth generally had a positive effect on

the PRC economy, there were indicators of inflationary pressures, such as broad increases in raw material

prices.  In order to provide for sustainable growth in future years, the PRC government issued a number of

policies intended to temper economic growth and create a “soft-landing”.  In terms of the availability of

credit, these policies promoted targeted lending to select industries.  Our response to these policies included

a more intense focus on lending to the coal mining, electric power, petroleum and transportation industries.

In addition, we remained vigilant in discharging our responsibility to help the PRC achieve balanced economic

development and to create more employment opportunities for the Chinese people.  In 2004, our SME program

was expanded to borrowers across the country, from big cities to small towns and rural areas.  Although the

outstanding loan balance in this sector at the end of 2004 was relatively small, it grew by an impressive 700.7% in

2004.  The Bank also extended financing support to the Western Development Office (“WDO”) of the State Council

to fund planning activities for each of the 13 provinces and 3 autonomous regions in China’s  western region

during 2004.

The robust development of our asset management business was one of the most significant developments

at the Bank in 2004.  Because of our demonstrated competence in managing project finance credits and

the increasing demand for high-quality lending opportunities among Chinese commercial banks, the ability

to participate in our lending projects generated a significant level of interest.  During 2004, we entered into

contracts with five financial institutions for loan participation and credit asset management services.  Further,

as one of the pioneer banks approved by the PRC government to explore both Asset-Backed Securities

(“ABS”) and Mortgage-Backed Securities (“MBS”) opportunities domestically, we have completed extensive

studies in both areas.  We are optimistic that we will execute the first such transaction ever in China during

the coming year.

In order to reduce the rate of inflation, the PBOC implemented a number of policies to effectively control

increasing liquidity in the domestic money market by reducing the levels of available funding in the inter-

bank market, increasing the required reserves on customer deposits, and raising the interest rate in the

fourth quarter of the year.  These policies created challenges for us in terms of both the availability and cost

of our funding.  In addition, CDB faced growing competition from commercial banks related to their significant

subordinated debt offerings during the year and the introduction of new money market fund products.  In

spite of these adverse conditions, the Bank successfully completed its planned debt offerings during the

year and was able to minimize the related cost.
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�� !"#$ Our Growing Business

��

�� 2004�� �� !"#$%&'()* 14,095�� !"#�� !"#$%& 23.6%��� 

�� !"#$%�&801�� �� !"#5.7%�2004�� !"#$4,532�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,�-./0�� !�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#$%

� 2004�� �� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$ !%&'()*+13,973�� �� !"

� 99.1%�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789-*+:;$<=>+?@ABCD*+E

�� !"#$%&'()*+��,�"#-./01234�� !"#567879:;<=>?@

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789:;<=01$>89:?@ABCDE

� �  !

Ou r  L end i ng  Bu s i n e s s

Lending Results

By the end of 2004, our outstanding loan balance reached RMB 1,409.5 billion, a 23.6% increase over the

previous year-end.  Of the total balance, RMB 80.1 billion was denominated in foreign currencies, which

accounted for 5.7% of the year-end balance.  New loan originations, totalling RMB 453.2 billion, were made

during 2004.

Foreign currency loans are generally provided for the acquisition, introduction and implementation of foreign

technology, materials, equipment, and advisory services related to key projects.  These loans are normally

designed to meet specific medium- and long-term capital financing requirements.

At the end of 2004, RMB 1,397.3 billion, representing 99.1% of our total outstanding loan balances, were

related to  infrastructure projects, targeted basic industries and other key industries.

The projects supported by our loans affect every province and region across China, and touch the lives of

almost every Chinese person.  Our funding to the eastern and coastal areas was higher than that for the

central and western regions, reflecting the more active business environment in these areas.  We also made

substantial efforts to expand our lending business in the western provinces by helping local governments to

identify potential opportunities.  Loans to the western region, though, have been steadily growing.
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�� !"#$=E�� !"#$%&

BREAKDOWN OF OUTSTANDING LOANS BY GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRI-
BUTION (BASED ON PROJECT LOCATION)

��OMMQ�� !"#$%&'()* SKNB�OMMP�� SKOOB

Note:For 2004, 6.1% are multi-regional, while this number for 2003 is 6.22%

�� ! Breakdown of Outstanding Loans by Industry
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�� !"#$ Our Growing Business

�� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567�� !"#$%&"#'() 2004�� 

�� !"#�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'()*+��,-./

�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,

�� 2004��� �� !"#�� !"#�� 778�� !"#�� !"# 463.6%�2004���

�� !"#$%&'( 2.3�� !"#$%&'()*+,

Managed Assets

In support of our strategic objective of expanding our credit asset management business, transactions in loan

participations and co-financing grew tremendously in 2004.  We also arranged, in a number of cases, for other

commercial banks to provide bridge loans to our clients in order to satisfy their requirements and raise our social

contribution in cases where we were temporarily constrained by PRC government imposed lending limits.  In all

such cases, we maintained the management rights to the lending relationships.  At the end of 2004, our total

managed assets, which are recorded off-balance sheet, reached RMB 77.8 billion, representing a 463.6% increase

from the previous year.  We also recognized fee income of RMB 230 million on the services provided with respect

to these assets during the year.
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Financial Advisory Service

Financial advisory activities have always been a key component of our intermediary services and they have a

profound impact on the long-term development of our Bank, by enabling us to better understand the needs

of our clients.  As part of our evolving strategy to improve the quality of our customer service, we focused on

restructuring the financial advisory service function in response to the changing needs of our clients.  During

2004, we established several new business processes and redesigned a number of policies in this area.  These
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changes allowed us to develop closer relationships with our customers, which directly resulted in more oppor-

tunities for new loan originations.  Our financial advisory services are typically targeted at assisting our clients

to improve their corporate governance, as a basis for effectively supporting their increased financing needs.  In

a meaningful way, our financial advisiory services contributed directly to both the improvement of our asset

quality from the “bottom up” and the resolution of non-performing loans.

In addition, to improve  the collaboration between the head office and branches, we focused our resources

and efforts on the top-ten targets in three areas - top ten cities, top ten clients and top ten projects.  We

completed 14 target projects during the year.  During 2004, our branches conducted 68 advisory projects,

in support of lending agreements totalling RMB 248.1 billion.
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Debt-to-equity Swaps

The focus on our equity investments over the past year was predominantly on resolution and disposition.  We

disposed eight equity investments, with total value of RMB 16.1 billion, recovering 97.6 % of the original

investment amount.  During 2004, our equity investment in Sinochem Corporation was repurchased by its

shareholders, with a realized gain of RMB 1.5 billion.  At the end of the year, we held  investments in 12

entities, with total value of RMB 8.43 billion, and our intent is to dispose of these investments.
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Bond Underwriting

We continue to be one of the largest debt underwriters in the domestic bond market.  In 2004, we completed

six successful offerings with total amount of RMB 1.7 billion.  We were the lead underwriter on one offering

and co-lead underwriter on the other two.  We recognized RMB 17.1 million fee income for our underwriting

services for the year.
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Fund Management

Following the success of the Sino-Swiss Partnership Fund (“SSPF”), ASEAN China Investment Fund L.P.

(ACIF) and China-Belgium Direct Equity Investment Fund(CBF) were established with CDB participating as a

sponsor on behalf of the PRC government.

The ACIF was formed for the purpose of promoting economic and trade cooperation among the 10 ASEAN

countries and China.  It is managed by the UOB Venture Management Co.  The CBF was established principally

for the development of the SME sector in China, and is actively managed by Haitong-Fortis Private Equity

Fund Management Co., Ltd..

The Sino-Swiss Venture Capital Fund Management Company (“SSVC”) has been focusing its efforts in

managing the projects funded by SSPF and is searching for new investment opportunities.
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For some time, we have been exploring ways to meet the funding needs of the small- and medium-sized

enterprises (“SMEs”).  This has been difficult since many commercial banks have experienced high levels of

non-performing loans in this particular sector, largely a result of the lack of a well-established credit

information system in China.  However, the experience of many developed countries has indicated to us

that SMEs are a significant source of jobs in a growing economy.  We have little doubt that they will be the

part of the solution to a number of social challenges related to the urbanization of rural China and the

privatization of small- to medium- sized state-owned enterprises.

As a PRC government development bank, we believe that we have a special social obligation to promote the

growth of this critical economic sector and we recognize that this will involve taking on risks that other banks

are unwilling to take at this time.  We understand that we will have to develop policies and processes that will

enable us to properly assess and manage the risks related to SME lendings in order to properly balance our

social and commercial objectives.  Unlike many commercial banks, we do not have a large branch network.

Any foray into SME lending would be fundamentally flawed without the ability to manage the origination and

administration of SME loans close to the borrowers.  The only way to achieve success in this sector is to

combine our capacity to fund a substantial SME funding initiative with the development of a network and

credit culture to support proper credit risk management.  This is quite challenge.

The creativity of our professionals is unlimited, however.  Our loan officers and credit administration

professionals have designed a platform through which lending to SMEs can be affectively and profitably

managed.  This platform relies heavily on the support of local governments, through loan guarantees, and

on the credit history of distinct local groups of SMEs, rather than a single borrower.  These SME groups,

with the assistance of local governments and commercial banks, form associations.  Each participant makes

a commitment to repaying its loans and allowing their repayment status to be transparent to other members.

In addition, each participant contributes a certain percentage of its loans to a reserve fund that serves as

collateral to the borrowings of all members within the association.  Through this arrangement, SME borrowers

face social pressure to remain current on their obligations.

At the end of 2004, our lending to SME’s totalled RMB 4.5 billion.
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In nearly 30 years of economic reform and development, China has been through tremendous changes faster

than anyone has expected.  The flood of inbound capital investment has made China the number one

manufacturer in the world.  This has enabled China to develop a high-quality workforce of individuals with a

broad range of expertise and skills.  In recognition of the benefits of globalisation and to promote the continued

growth of our economy, a number of large Chinese enterprises have reached the point of expanding their

business overseas.  This outward expansion is also consistent with our government’s strategic policies.

A number of Chinese enterprises have been exploring opportunities overseas and some of the potential

projects are relatively large.  The high risk inherent to such projects and their relatively large borrowing

requirements have made many commercial banks uncomfortable about participating in their funding.  Many

of the enterprises in search of financing for outbond investment have turned to us for support.  In reality,

these projects are typical of the development financing that we typically undertake and we are well-positioned

to be of service.  We are known to have both the adequate resources to fund these projects and a

demonstrated track record of achievement in effectively managing the credit risk.

Government policy and market needs dictate the focus of our financing activities in this area.  Our

management made a strategic decision to support a certain number of organizations in their overseas

expansion.  These organizations include: Petro China, Sino-Chem, China Minmetals Corporation, CITIC

Group, MCC Group, and China Construction Group. In 2004, we made lending commitments in the amount

of USD 780.0 million to these organizations to support the overseas expansion of their businesses.  With

our strong funding capabilities and firm commitments, these organizations were even more confident in

their ability to succeed in their overseas development.
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Box  2 :   "Go  G l oba l i z a t i o n "
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Key  P r o j e c t s

Construction Projects for 2008 Beijing Olympics

Construction for the 2008 Beijing Olympics is

one of the primary tasks for the Beijing municipal

government in the coming years, and is also a

focus of our Bank. As the key financial advisor

and funding source for the Olympic construction

projects, the Bank has fully leveraged our

resources to provide broad support to Olympic

construction projects.

The Banking Department at the Head Office is

now working with a total of 27 Olympic

construction projects.  The total funding needs for these projects amounts to RMB 107.3 billion, of which

the Bank has made commitments to provide RMB 43.4 billion. By the end of 2004, the Bank had signed

loan contracts for RMB 33.5 billion and funded a total of RMB 24.3 billion. Of these projects, there are six

Olympic stadium and gymnasium construction projects, including the National Stadium located in Area B

of the Olympic Green, National Gymnasium and Olympic Village, Olympic Green, and Beijing Wukesong

Culture and Sports Center. The other projects relate to auxiliary urban infrastructure and facilities projects

for the Olympic Games, such as the expansion of Beijing Capital International Airport, the construction of

Beijing expressways, and the rebuilding of the city roads.
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Inner Mongolia Prairie Xingfa Co., Ltd

Inner Mongolia Prairie Xingfa Co., Ltd (“Prairie Xingfa”) was established as part of PRC government’s

agricultural industrialization strategy and has become a leader in the agricultural industry.  The company’s

primary product lines include staples such as broiler chickens and mutton.  Its brand has become a household

name to many ordinary Chinese families and it recently completed a domestic initial public offering.

For the past decade, CDB has provided strong support to Prairie Xingfa, including loans to finance a number

�� !"#$ Our Growing Business

of significant initiatives like the Ten-Million Broiler Production System

Auxiliary Construction Project, the Inner Mongolia East Prairie

Construction and Mutton Sheep Industrialization Project and the

Inner Mongolia Mutton Sheep Industrialization and Ecosystem

Construction Project. These projects have enabled Prairie Xingfa to

expand its production scale and streamline its operations to fulfill

the rapidly increasing demand for its products.  In aggregate, the

funded loans to these projects total RMB 310.0 million.
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Jiangsu Tianwan Nuclear Power Plant

construction represents a total investment of RMB 26.5 billion. Construction on the project commenced in

October 1999 and the plant is expected to start full commercial operations at the end of 2005. This project

is a key element of the Sino-Russian strategic partnership, and is also a major energy cooperation project in

the Ninth Five-Year Plan period. This project will help streamline the energy infrastructure in Jiangsu province

and the East China region.  It will also support the economic and social development, and promote broader

cooperation between China and Russia in the peaceful use of atomic energy.

Our Bank has made a commitment of RMB 5.1 billion for the plant’s construction.  By the end of 2004, the

balance of the outstanding loan had reached RMB 4.2 billion.

Jiangsu Tianwan Nuclear Power Plant is locaed

in Lianyungang, Jiangsu Province, on the Yellow

Sea. The rated capacity of this state-of-the-art

nuclear  plant is 4,000,000 kilowatts, with the

potential to increase its capacity by an additional

4,000,000 kilowatts, through the construction

of additional generators. The first phase of
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Infrastructure Construction Project for the China-Asean Expo

domestic enterprises to expand operations overseas.  It will also provide a stage to showcase the achievements

of cooperation between China and other ASEAN countries.  In addition, there will be discussions around

the creation of an ASEAN free trade zone.

The Bank, at the request of Nanning municipal government, agreed to provide RMB 6.2 billion in loans to

finance the CAEXPO infrastructure construction project in 2004.

The CAEXPO infrastructure project is comprised a broad range of municipal construction projects including

airport expansion, exhibition facilities, peripheral renovation, urban roads and bridges, environmental

protection, tourism facilities, water conservancy infrastructure, the ASEAN International Park infrastructure,

communication assurance and comprehensive information service systems.  The total investment in these

projects is expected to be RMB 9.8 billion.  By the end of 2004, our loans to the projects reached RMB 3.3

billion, which will ensure the success of the first CAEXPO.

In response to the proposal of Premier

Wen Jiabao at the 7th China-ASEAN

Leaders Meeting (10+1), the State

Council announced that the China-

ASEAN Expo (the “CAEXPO”) will be

held every November in Nanning,

Guangxi province, starting in 2004.

From an economic perspect ive,

CAEXPO will serve as a merchandise

exchange platform for China and

ASEAN countries, as well as countries

in other parts of the world.  The

principal objectives of CAEXPO are to

expand investment within the region,

attract global capital and encourage
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China Network Communications Group Corporation

China Network Communications Group Corporation (CNC) is a large state-owned enterprise established in

May 2002, through a spin-off from China Netcom, as part of the PRC government’s reform of the

telecommunications sector.  CNC is one of the four largest telecom operators in China.

CNC has a well-established partnership with the Bank.  The total outstanding loan balance for the consolidated

CNC group was RMB 12.0 billion at the end of 2004. The loans were underwritten principally to support

CNC’s internal restructuring and integration initiatives in 2003, which enabled CNC to successfully sell

equity shares through an initial public offering in both Hong Kong and the US in November 2004.

The Bank provided significant support to CNC to help it expand its telecom network.  One of the projects

that CDB supported was the high-speed internetworking construction project (“CNCNET”) in China.  The

CNCNET is a new generation IP Over DWDM full fibre network, serving as a foundation for providing world-
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wide high-speed internet access.  CNCNET provides for

the transmission of high-quality audio, multimedia and

commercial video data and batch data transmission.

The network has commenced operations as planned,

and has proven to be a successful step towards

improving information flow in a rapidly changing

environment, which is critical to the continued

economic development and social progress in China.
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Debt issuance is the primary source of funding at CDB.  In 2004, our cumulative debt issuance since our

inception passed the RMB 2.0 trillion mark, a milestone with profound significance in the history of our

bank as well as China’s debt market.  Over the years, CDB has established credibility in the domestic debt

market, and our bonds are sought by a wide range of investors, not only because of our quasi-sovereign

credit rating, but also because of our demonstrated record of innovation.  Our bonds are structured with

features and maturities that appeal to broad range of investors with increasingly complex needs.  Over the

years, we have played a significant role in the development of China’s debt market, especially in our continued

effort to promote more market-oriented mechanisms.

The amount of debt issued by us is largely dependent on the funding requirements of our loan origination

activiries.  During 2004, CDB issued debt securities totalling RMB 360.0 billion.  Supported by our strong

credit rating and sound financial position, we were able to maintain funding cost at a relatively low level.
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With approval from the CBRC and the PBOC, we issued RMB 20.0 billion in subordinated debt securities on

24 December 2004.  This was the first time that a policy bank was able to raise its secondary capital, and

thus improve its capital adequacy, through the issuance of subordinated debt in China.  Through an open

bidding process, we attracted key investors, such as China Life Insurance, National Post Savings, commercial

banks and securities companies.
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On 28 September 2004, we successfully issued US$ 600.0 million in 10-year bonds in the US and offered

Euro 325.0 million in 5.5-year bonds outside of the US.   This global offering marked our re-entry into the

global capital markets.  Our last such offering occurred in 1999.  In addition, this was the first time that

CDB issued Euro denominated debt and we are only second entity in China, after the MoF, that has ever

issued such debt.

Both issuances were well received by international investors.  The USD bond and the Euro bond offerings

were oversubscribed by 2.5 times and 1.75 times, respectively.  We succeeded in attracting close to 50% of

the total subscriptions from large international institutions.  We also managed to attract a diversified pool

of investors including leading global banks, asset management firms and insurance companies.  The success

of our debt issuance overseas demonstrates the level of confidence that investors have in our track record of

performance and our financial position.

�� !"#$% Our Diversified Funding
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We have long been recognized as the “pioneer” in the domestic debt market.  In 2004, we continued to

explore opportunities to introduce new products to the market.  During the year, we launched a new

floating rate bond in which the interest rate  was tied to the 7-day repurchase rate on the inter-bank

market.  This interest rate arrangement is very sensitive to market fluctuations, and is welcomed by short-

term investors, including some of large domestic money market funds.  In addition, we issued two bonds

with interest rates determined through on a bidding process during the year, as well as a rolling bond with

forward delivery option.  These innovative products, which are also extremely sensitive to fluctuations in

market interest rates, were very attractive to a growing number of investors with complex investment needs

and objectives.

On 28 December 2004, we successfully issued USD 500.0 million of debt in the domestic inter-bank market.

Of this amount, USD 400.0 million and USD 100.0 million were in the form of 5-year floating rate bonds

and 3-year fixed rate bonds, respectively.  This represented the second time that we issued foreign currency

debt in the domestic market since 2003.  Like our international offering, our domestic offering attracted a

range of investors including state-owned banks, joint stock banks, city commercial banks, insurance

companies, securities firms and foreign bank branches in China.  Both the 5-year floating rate bond and the

3-year fixed rate bond were oversubscribed by 1.5 times and 1.3 times, respectively.
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� �  ! RISK MANAGEMENT
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We are exposed to three major business risks:

� credit risk

� market risk

� operational risk

We believe risks are most effectively managed through the following principles:

� proper risk governance

� continuous evaluation of risk appetite and risk limits

� practical approaches of risk assessment and measurement

For a number of years, we have been following the above principles to develop and refine our risk management

function.  In 2004, we continued in these endeavors.  Notably, we created the Risk Management Committee

(“RMC”) to establish risk management policy for the Bank.  There are three sub-committees reporting to the

RMC.  These include the Credit Risk Management Committee (“CRMC”), responsible for the management

of credit risk; the Asset Liability Management Committee (“ALMC”), responsible for market risk and operational
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Credit risk is the risk of loss that a borrower or a counterparty may not meet its obligation according to the

original contractual terms of its facility with CDB.  The Bank is exposed to credit risk through its lending,

trading and capital markets activities, and it is the most significant risk faced by the Bank.  Our credit risk

management has the following unique attributes:

� Dual approval system

� Advanced loan rating techniques and methodologies

� Credit limit management

� Portfolio management

� Early warning system

� Robust collection efforts

risk management; and the Loan Approval Committee, responsible for the final approval of loans.

In 2004, we also made further progress in the development of risk measurement tools and methodologies.

For example, we started the development of an internal risk rating system, which included research on and

analysis of the application of economic risk capital principles at our Bank.  With the help of international

consultants, we designed a basic framework for the measurement of economic capital that addressed the

effect credit, market and operational risks.  We also completed a preliminary calculation of risk adjusted

return on capital (“RAROC”).
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Dual Approval System

The credit risk of each individual loan is managed by a dual rating system - the borrower’s rating and the

facility rating.  The Credit Risk Management Committee (“CMRC”) assigns the credit rating and lending

limits at the individual borrower level.  Each loan application must meet both the credit rating requirements

placed on the borrower and fall within the lending limit in order to be processed.  The final approval

authority for individual loans rests with the Loan Approval Committee.  The CRMC continues to monitor the

business development of borrowers, reviews the borrowers’ ratings and lending limits on a quarterly basis,

approves the overall borrowers’ analysis, and adjusts the credit rating and limit annually, if necessary.
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Advanced Loan Rating Techniques and Methodologies

Our internal risk rating system, designed in 2003, was proven to be effective in practice this year.  In 2004,

we enhanced our internal risk rating processes, methodologies and calculation standards in accordance

with the New Basle Accord.  We also collected and processed additional data related to the performance of

our loans, as well as refined our calculation of Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD).  We

established a policy to limit LGD to 1% for every new origination.
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Limit Management

In addition to using credit ratings to manage credit risk, we established various limits by industry, geogra-

phy and customer.  Through strict adherence to limit management policies and procedures, we were able

�� ! Risk Management
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Portfolio Management

Our portfolio management is built on adherence to exposure and concentration limits.  During 2004, we

performed quarterly analyses on the entire credit portfolio.  In addition, we undertook a thorough analysis

of industry risk correlations, intended to reduce industry risk to the lowest level possible.  As a result of our

study, we adjusted our industry structure slightly in order to achieve a better risk-based return, and

strengthened the risk management on related parties and group customers.
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Early Warning System

We view our early warning system as one of the most important aspects of good credit risk management.

Our early warning system is built on effective communication among various business and risk manage-

ment departments, as well as between the head office and our branches.  Our analysis by industry, geogra-

phy and borrowers combined with a continuous monitoring of collateral, as well as the quick reporting

system for major borrower events, form an effective early warning system.

to maintain our credit risk within acceptable tolerances.  At the portfolio level, we also set risk limits and

concentration targets for each industry and geography.  These concentration limits were strictly adhered to

on a bank-wide basis during our underwriting process.
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In 2004, we began a bank-wide exercise of preparing a three-year rolling forecast on asset quality.  This

exercise identified the possible adverse impacts on asset quality due to changes in the macro-economy,

shifts on government policy, and delays of project constructions.  The compilation of information started at

the branch level and was summarized and verified at the head office.  The overall analysis gave the Bank a

clear view on relevant trends and allowed our senior management to take early actions to prevent

potential losses.
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Robust collection efforts

Our collection efforts on non-performing loans has been rigorous throughout the past years and continued

to be so in 2004.  These efforts contributed significantly to the reduction of our non-performing loan ratio

in  earlier years and we recognize the need to continue our intense focus in this area in order to maintain

our low level of NPLs.

Our asset quality continued to improve in 2004.  After five years of decline in both absolute and relative

levels of NPLs from 1998 to 2002, our NPL ratio has gradually stabilized into a range of between 1% and 2%,

which is consistent with the performance of leading global banks, where NPL ratios are generaly within a

range of 0.5% to 3.0%.  At the end of the year, non-performing loans stood at RMB 16.6 billion, or 1.2 % of

the total loan portfolio, down by 0.1 percentage points from a year ago.
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2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

�� OMMQ� NO� PN�
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�� 3,913.8 3,204.3 998.6 1,842.5 5,256.4 15,215.6

�� 25.7% 21.1% 6.6% 12.1% 34.5% 100%

�� 16.6 15.2 15.9 29.5 58.2

�� 1.21% 1.34% 1.78% 3.96% 8.78%

�� 7,376.5 3,541.6 2,699.4 1,176.8 1,817.4 16,611.7

�� 44.4% 21.3% 16.3% 7.1% 10.9% 100%

�����
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(Balances are in billions of RMB)

Non-performing Loan

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Balance 3,913.8 3,204.3 998.6 1,842.5 5,256.4 15,215.6

Percentage 25.7% 21.1% 6.6% 12.1% 34.5% 100%

Balance 16.6 15.2 15.9 29.5 58.2

Ratio 1.21% 1.34% 1.78% 3.96% 8.78%

Balance 7,376.5 3,541.6 2,699.4 1,176.8 1,817.4 16,611.7

Percentage 44.4% 21.3% 16.3% 7.1% 10.9% 100%

Transportation Manufacturing Electric Power Agricultural Other Total

As at 31 December

(Balances are in millions of RMB)

Non-performing Loans by Industry

As at 31 December 2004

As at 31 December 2003

(Balances are in millions of RMB)

Transportation Manufacturing Electric Power Agricultural Other Total
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Market risk is the risk of loss caused by changes in prices, principally influenced by interest and foreign

exchange rates of financial instruments.

At CDB, we are exposed to the following types of market risk:

� interest rate risk

� currency risk

� liquidity risk

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in the level of interest rates or changes in the shape

of yield curves that could adversely affect the market value of our financial instruments or future earnings of

CDB.  There are four types of interest rate risk faced by the Bank: (i) replacement (or duration mismatching)

risk, (ii) yield curve risk, (iii) basis point risk, and (iv) option risk.

Our management of interest rate risk is primarily achieved through gap analysis performed on sensitivity,

duration and fair value.  We also hedge some of our interest rate risk on long-term fixed rate debts

denominated in foreign currencies with interest rate derivatives such as interest rate swaps and collars.  In

2004, we further strengthened our bank's capabilities on the identification, measurement and monitoring

of interest rate risks through a formalized bench-marking system that was customized to the unique

operations of CDB, while in alignment with the framework recommended by the New Basle Accord.
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Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss arising from the fluctuation of exchange rates.  We utilize appropriate

derivative instruments, such as forwards, swaps and other financial products to effectively hedge and manage

currency risks.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to fund its current obligations and operations in the most

cost efficient manner.  ALMC monitors liquidity risk through periodical meetings and reviews of the asset/

liability structure.  Our primary funding source is the domestic bond market.  Changes in the PRC government’s

monetary policies and market expectation of interest rate are all important factors that could adversely

affect our key funding source.  We have also established a forecasting system related to our funding needs

that provides information to management on future cash flows of one week to three months.  This system

allows us to make perform efficient liquidity planning.  We generally manage short-term liquidity in the

domestic short-term inter-bank markets, through such instruments as inter-bank lending and discounted

bills.  In addition, the PBOC has made a commitment of helping us to meet any short-term funding needs

that may arise.
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Our maturity analysis serves as the basis of our bank-wide management of liquidity risk.  At the same time,

we calculate the maturity gap on the average years outstanding for loans and bonds issued.  In 2004, we

faced more challenges in managing the maturity gap as the terms of our bonds issued in the domestic

market had to shorten as a result of the competition.  Our management took effective action to control the

widening gap of maturity by adjusting our loan structure and issuing bonds with longer term.  Through

such efforts, our Bank’s average maturity gap was maintained at+0.23 years at the end of 2004.
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Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from failed internal control process and/or systems, human factors,

and/or external events.  Our bank has established a complete internal control system to effectively identify,

measure, monitor and manage operational risks on a timely or continual basis.  In 2004, we made continued

progress in achieving a better control of our financial and operational risks.  During the year, we improved our

core accounting system and financial system in order to standardize the accounting to new business, strengthen

a more centralized control over information and budget of financial resources.  We are also working with

international consultants on the design of a management accounting structure that matches the business

nature and operations of our bank.  We hope to complete the IT implementation in 2005.

All of our departments are required to establish and implement comprehensive sets of policies and procedures

within their operational areas, and evaluate the effectiveness of their internal controls on a periodic basis.

Our Internal Audit Department performs regular examinations on compliance with the Bank’s established

policies and procedures in all departments at the head office and all branches of the Bank.
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�� ! Human Resources

� �  ! HUMAN RESOURCES

As always, our management places a special emphasis on building the best professional team in China.  In

this regard, CDB’s human resource function and our staff training programs receive the attention of CDB’s

top management, as we view the development of our people as an extension of our special social

responsibility.  We have dedicated our efforts in this area to creating training programs that will promote

the professional development of our people and be responsive to changes in our markets.  We have also

designed a performance and compensation management program to both establish a link between

performance and pay and to improve accountability throughout the Bank.  In this regard, we want to

recognize the value of individual performance.
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In 2004, through the establishment of a review and approval committee, we made further refinements to

our organizational structure and personnel deployment.  In addition, we redefined and streamlined our

business processes.  For the first time, certain functions were outsourced. International best practices and

methodologies in human resources management were introduced to the Bank.  These include a

comprehensive evaluation of employee positions and individual accountability throughout the Bank to

enable us to better transform bank-wide strategic visions into clearly defined perfomance targets for every

individual.  All of our efforts were aimed at improving the Bank’s strategic execution and responsiveness to

challenges, enhancing performance, and achieving international benchmarking targets.
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We developed a skillset database to encourage professional development and to monitor the development

milestones achieved by our dedicated professionals.  This database will also enable us to better match

employees to open positions. Centralized deployment of bank-wide human resources was strengthened

and streamlined to facilitate the development of our core banking businesses.  Exchange programs with

other governmental organizations and customers were deepened, which created more opportunities for

our staff during the year.  In addition, we made significant efforts in changing the traditional governmental

style of promotion system, and created new career paths for technical professionals.
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I nnova t ion  on  management  o f  human resources- Pos i t ion ,  Pe r fo rmance  and  Pay

Our performance measurement process was further refined to more precisely assess individual competencies.

Better understanding the capabilities of our employees is essential in an increasingly complex environment

in which we are developing new products and services, such as the asset management business. The

Performance Appraisal Meeting approach was set up to upgrade the internal management of performance

assessment. Our employee benefits were also improved to ensure that we remain competitive in the human

resources market.

In 2003, working closely with international consultants, we started a program to establish an enhanced

performance measurement and compensation system that linked each of our  employees’ compensation to

their responsibility and performance.  In 2004, we made considerable progress in the implementation of

the newly designed 3P system.  We redefined job responsibilities at the individual position level, formulated
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In the second half of 2004, our training centre based in Shenzhen commenced operations.  This is the first

off-site training centre ever established  by CDB.  It offers a wide range of high quality training courses to

our employees, and provides opportunities for our staff to exchange ideas with experts from both through-

out China and around the world.  Since its opening, we have conducted a number of courses on banking

practices for our front-line staff at the Shenzhen training centre.
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Ove r s ea s  t r a i n i n g  f o r  s e n i o r  p r o f e s s i o na l s
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To further enhance the professional knowledge and English proficiency of our senior and middle management,

we collaborated with the University of Illinois in organizing training courses for our senior professionals in

the United States in 2004.  The content of these training courses was comprehensive and covered key

banking processes and products relevant to CDB, as well as current trends and new developments in the

global financial services market.  Initiatives like this, which require the attention of senior management and

substantial resources, emphasize our dedication to offering truly world-class training to our employees.

�� ! Human Resources

performance evaluation indicators and established compensation links  During the year, we also developed

transition plans towards the full implementation of the 3P program, which will occur through a series of

manageable steps to minimize any potential unintended effects.  The compensation system innovation was

carried forward and the level was steadily raised.
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To leverage their academic and research capabilities, we formed partnerships with some of China’s premier

national research institutions and universities in the design and delivery of certain business administration

and leadership enhancement courses.  A significant number of our senior and middle level  management

personnel benefited through their attendance in these partnership programs.

In line with our objective of supporting Chinese companies “going abroad” and to facilitate communication

with members of the international financial services community, we have identified a pool of employees

with sound English language capability through formalized examinations across the Bank.  The examinations

also helped us to develop a better understanding of the level of proficiency in English among our staff.  The

professionals identified as having the requisite level of English proficiency will be taking on more responsibilities

in areas that require English language skills.  They will also assist our training department in the development

of tailored English training programs for the rest of our employees.
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2005 � 2 � 18 �

PricewaterhouseCoopers China Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton, Bermuda

Business is undertaken in the registered name of PricewaterhouseCoopers China Limited, incorporated in Bermuda with Limited Liability.
Registered address is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, Bermuda.
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�� ! Financial Statements
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�� ! Financial Statements
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    - �� !" 15 42,305 28,152

    - �� !"# 15 1,766 1,738

�� !"�� 16 2,696 2,412

�� !" 17 1,489 3,608

�� ! 18 1,701 307

�� ! 1,574,482 1,279,167
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�� !"#

2 0 0 4 � 1 2 � 3 1 �� !"#  ( � )

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#�$%& !"#'()*+

�� !"#$%&' 2005 � 2 � 18�� !

����� �� !"��� 

�� 2004 2003

�� !"#$%

��

�� !"# 744 1,344

�� ! 19 95,935 65,743

�� !"# 3,006 -

�� !"#$%&' 20 83,612 51,046

�� !" 12 338 448

�� ! 21 1,254,825 1,064,406

�� ! 22 20,006 -

�� ! 23 8,543 6,751

�� ! 1,467,009 1,189,738

�� !"

�� ! 24 50,000 50,000

�� 25 6,336 5,161

�� ! 51,137 34,268

�� !"#$ 107,473 89,429

�� !"#$%&' 1,574,482 1,279,167
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�� !"#

2 0 0 4 �� !"#$

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� 2004 2003

�� !"#E��)�� !"
�� ! 25,297 18,467
�� !�

    �� !"# 13,14 3,688 2,829
    �� !"# - (17)
    �� !(��)�� (333) 1,242
    �� !"#$% 15 (1,770) (421)
    �� !" 157 157
    �� !"#$%& 1,925 1,620
    �� ! 5 (833) (1,644)
�� !"#$%�

    �� !"#$%&'( (3) (12)
    �� !" (1,338) (141)
    �� !"# - 9,228
    �� ! 1,000 1,000
    �� (263,084) (235,253)
    �� ! - (635)
    �� ! (223) 1,151
    �� !" (110) (224)
    �� !"# 3,006 -
    �� !"# (600) (530)
    �� ! 30,192 25,725
    �� ! 3,787 1,696
�� !"#$ (4,575) (5,664)
�� !"#$%&'()* (203,817) (181,426)

�� !"#(��)�� !"
�� !"#$%&'( (71,804) (35,959)
�� !"#$%& 49,969 28,584
�� !"#$ 833 1,644
�� !"#$%&"#'()*+ (467) (508)
�� !"#$%&"#'()*+ 7 74
�� !"#$%&'()* (21,462) (6,165)

�� !"#(��)�� !"
�� !"#$%&'() 457,965 561,131
�� !"#$%&'() (220,405) (363,547)
�� ! - 645
�� !"#$%&'()* 237,560 198,229

�� !"#�$%& !"#'()*+

����� �� !"��� 
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�� !"#

2 0 0 4 �� !"#$ (� )

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� 2004 2003

�� ��!"#$%&' 12,281 10,638

�� !" !#$%&' 18,874 8,236

�� !" !#$%&' 11 31,155 18,874

�� !"#$%&

�� !" 70,715 57,757

�� !" (37,352) (30,756)

�� !"#$%&'()'*+�

    �� !�"#�$%&' - 1,924

    �� !�"#�$%&' (9,557) (13,901)

    �� !"#$%&'() (311) (648)

    �� !"#$%&'()* - (107)

�� !"#$%&'()'*+,- (9,868) (12,732)

�� !"#�$%& !"#'()*+

����� �� !"��� 
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1    �� !"��#$

�� !"#(�� !��� )�� !"#$%&(�� !�� !)�� !"#$%&'()*��

� 1994 � 7 � 1 ���� !"#$��� !"#$%&'()*+ 29 ��

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123)456 789:;<=>?@A�� !"#$%

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%�� !"#$ !%&'()*+,-

�� ��� !"#$%&'()* +,-./0+*1234�� !"#�� !"#$�%&

�� !"#�� �� !"#$%&'()

�� 2004 � 12 � 31 ���� ! 4,678��  (2003 ��4,224 �)�

2    �� !"#

�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'(�

A    �� !

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'�� �� !"#$%�� !"#�� $%&'()*+,

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !"#$%&'($%)*+�� !"#$%&'()#*+,-./012#$345�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�12$+,34$56789:�;<=�� !"!#�

�(1)�� !"(2)�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123�� !"#$%&'()*��

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'()*+,-&'+./0123+4

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

�� !"#$% &'()*+,-'./01.�� !"#2�� 2005�1�1�� !"#�

�� ! 2004 � 12 � 31�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01 234 56!"789��

�� !"#$%&'()*+,)-.)/01�� !"#$%&'(")*+,-./012+3

�� !"#$%

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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�� ! Financial Statements

2    �� !"# (�)

B    �� !

�� !"#$%&'()'*+,�-'.

�� !" !#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�/� 012&3 45$6

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789:;<)��=:+,>?!@�� !

��

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./(0123%4567#89:;<+=>?

C    �� !"#

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%(�� !"#)��� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'( )*+,-.*/012345�� 

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%��� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*"#+,-.�� !"#$%&!"'()*+,-./0123'*+

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./,0

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789:;<=�� !"#$�� !"#$%

� 39�� !"#$%&'(�� �� !!"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&

�� !�"�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�/01

�� !"#$%&'()*+ 26�� 

D    �� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./(0123456)789:;<=6>�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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2    �� !"# (�)

E    �� !"#$

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*!"+,-./0123456+789.:;<=>

�� !"

�� !"#!"$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*+, -./012/!3456

F    �� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+ !"#$%,-./

�� !"#

G    �� !"#$

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'��"#$()*�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01��

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.

H    �� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0��123456.%&'789:,-..;<=>?@A

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$!"%&'(

�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*+,-*+.-/�� !"#$%&#$'&(

�� !"#$%&'()*#+,-./-0123/45678("��"�� !"#)�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'()*+

��

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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2    �� !"# (�)

I     �� ��!"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.$&/0123456�789/-:;<=3>?@AB�� 

�� !"#�$%&'(�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&"'()*+,-.�/01�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� �� !"#�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� �� !"#$%&'()

90�� �� !"#$%&'(�� �� !"#$%&'( 90�� !"#$%&'(�� !

�� !"#$�� !"#$%$&'()*+,-./0123456�� !"#$%&'$%(

�� !�� !"#$%&!'()*+,-."#!/#0�� !"#$%&'(!)*+�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+,&,!-

�� !"#�� !"#$%$&'()*+,�� !"#$%&'()*+,-&./-,01#

�� !"#$%&'()*'+�,-

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'(&')*+,-./012

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.%&/0%12345�� !"#$%�&'()*+

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0��1�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.'/0123(

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456%789:%;<=

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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2    �� !"# (�)

J    ��

�� !"#$%&'(��� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&�'( !)*�� !"#$!%

�� !"#$%&'��� !"#$%&'()*&+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

�� !"#$%&'(#)*+�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

�� !"#$%&' !()*+,-.#$/012345�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

�� !"#$% &'�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$%&!'()*+,-./0

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'()*+,-!./

�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !012345'678�

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123+456789:;<,=>?�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%�&�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.

���� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+,-#./01234567

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.'/0123456789:2;<=>?2@1ABC

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345678)9�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�123456789:;<=>?@A=BCD�� !"

�� �� !"#$%&%'()*+,-.$/0123456789:�� !"#$%&'!(

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.(/01"2311�4(567.8�� !"#$%$&'(

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*!+$,-./0)*1234$%5678

�� !"#$%&'()*+,)*-,.�� !"#$%��&%'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�234�� !"#$%&'()*+,-. /0��

�� !"�#$%&'()*+,-./0123456�789:;

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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2    �� !"# (�)

K    �� !

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'(#!)*+,-!./0

�� !"#$%�� !&'()*+,-'./01+23456789:+;<�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&'�

�� !"# 30 - 35 �

�� ! 5 - 11 �

�� !"# 5 �

�� ! 6 �

�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$ %&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'()*+#,-./012�� !"#

�� !"#$%�� !"#$#%&'()*+,-./0123�� !"#$ %&'()*+

�� !"#��$%&'()*+,

L    �� !"

�� !"#$%&'�()�#*+ !,-(./0�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012

�� !

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()"�*+,-./012

�� !"#$%&'()*#$+�� !"#$%&'()*+,$-./0

M   �� ��!"#

�� !"#$��%��&'()*+,-./03�� !"#$%&'(�� !"�� !"#

�� !"#$��%

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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2    �� !"# (�)

N    �� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-+./0�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./ 0�� !"#

�� !�"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'()

O    �� !"#

�� !"#$%&'&()*+,-./01234567�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

P     �� !"

�� !"#$%"&'()*+,-./01234567*879:;<=>?@"A33%�� !

�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345678

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,- ./012345627�� !"#$%&'�� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./-0123)45�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&'()*+,$-.�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'()

�� !�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'

Q    �� !

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&(�� !"#$!%)�� !"#$%&'(�� !"

�� !"�� !"#$%&'()*"+,-.')/0#1)23� 4567$8+09:;<

�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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�� ! Financial Statements

2    �� !"# (�)

R    �� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+&,-

S    �� !

�� !"#$%�&'()*+,�� !�� !"#$%&'()*+,#-./012)&(3

�� �!"#$%

T    �� !"��#$

�� !"#$%&'()�*+,-'./01'23456�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

�� !"#$�%&'�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./,-#012+3456 7�� !

�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()

U    �� !

�� !"#$%&'() !*+,-"./012345$67

3    �� !"#

A    �� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012�� !"#�$%&'()*+,-./+,0123

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345&6786)9:;�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$�%&'()*'+,-�� !"#$%&

�� !"

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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3    �� !"# (�)

A    �� !"#$%& (�)

�� !"#$%&'�()*+,-./0�� !"#$�� !"#$%�� !�"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01'(234

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'(

�� !�"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123 2C�

B    �� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567��89:;#&'<�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'&()*+�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&"#'()*+,-�./01"#!234�� �� !"#$%&'#$�(

�� !"#$%&�'()*+

�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&�� !"#�$%&'()*+,-./0123�� !

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'�()*+,-./01�� !"#$%&'()*+,$-./012�� 

�� !"#$%& '()*�� �� !"#$�%&'()*+,-./012345

�� !

�� !"#$%"&'()*+,-./01"234�� !"#$%&�'()*+, %-��

�� !"#$%�&'()*+,-./01&2,3�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567��  !"#$%&'()*+,- !&

�� !"#$%

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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3    �� !"# (�)

B    �� ! (�)

�� !"#$%& !'()�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'()�*+,-.

�� !"#$%&'�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,�-./01234($%567�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012!%&�34)*5�� !"#$%&"'()*+,

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()�*+,

�� !"#$%&'()*+,�

* �� !"#$%��� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� !"#

** ��� !"#$��� �� !�� �� �� �� �� !"#

*** �� !"#$%��� �� �� �� �� �� !�� �� �� �� �� !"#

2004 2003
�� % �� %

��

�� !"# * 753,150 53 607,669 53

��� !" ** 332,043 24 284,295 25

�� !"# *** 322,961 23 246,135 22

�� ! 1,325 - 1,839 -

�� ! 3,335 - 2,313 -

1,412,814 100 1,142,251 100

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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3    �� !"# (�)

B    �� ! (�)

�� !"#$%&'()*+�

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003
�� % �� %

��

�� �� 371,962 26 340,745 30

�� !" 313,824 22 235,192 21

�� �� !"#$%&' 312,552 22 182,506 16

�� !" 91,907 7 118,302 10

�� �� �! 80,616 6 40,019 4

�� !"�#$%&'( 50,944 4 42,724 4

�� !"#$ 49,339 3 68,892 6

�� 137,010 10 109,719 9

�� ! 1,325 - 1,839 -

�� ! 3,335 - 2,313 -

1,412,814 100 1,142,251 100
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3    �� !"# (�)

B    �� ! (�)

�� !"#$%&'(�

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

C    �� !

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$��%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234�56789*:;<=>�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'%()�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'()*

D    �� !

�� !"#$%&'()$%*�� !"#�� �� !"#$%�&'(�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$%&'()*"+,-./#$0�123�� !"

�� !"�2003�� 2004�� !"#$%& 1��� 8.2765�� 1��� 8.2776���� 

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01

2004 2003
�� % �� %

��

�� !"# 1,338,841 95 1,089,153 95

�� !"# 51,721 4 31,360 3

�� !"# 17,592 1 17,586 2

�� ! 1,325 - 1,839 -

�� ! 3,335 - 2,313 -

1,412,814 100 1,142,251 100
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3    �� !"# (�)

D    �� ! (�)

�� !"#$%&'( )*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0 12�

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� 2004 � 12 � 31 �

���

�� !"#$%& 29,638 173 215 30,026

�� �� 1,308,501 60,769 19,916 1,389,186

�� !"�� 103,154 - - 103,154

�� 38,861 5,210 - 44,071

�� ! 7,431 171 443 8,045

�� ! 1,487,585 66,323 20,574 1,574,482

���

�� !"#$%& 95,915 741 23 96,679

�� !"# 3,006 - - 3,006

�� !"#$%&' 32,170 31,670 19,772 83,612

�� !"#$ ! 1,252,625 16,076 6,130 1,274,831

�� ! 8,469 412 - 8,881

�� ! 1,392,185 48,899 25,925 1,467,009

�� !"#$% 95,400 17,424 (5,351) 107,473

�� !"#$ - (5,846) 6,250 404

�� �� �� ! ��
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�� ! Financial Statements

3    �� !"# (�)

D    �� ! (�)

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� �� �� ! ��

�� 2003 � 12 � 31 �

���

�� !"#$%& 18,204 5 19 18,228

�� �� 1,051,480 51,522 17,883 1,120,885

�� !"�� 103,016  - - 103,016

�� 27,531 2,359  - 29,890

�� ! 6,533 108 507 7,148

�� ! 1,206,764 53,994 18,409 1,279,167

���

�� !"#$%& 65,822 1,248 17 67,087

�� !"#$%&' 1,019 32,256 17,771 51,046

�� !"#$ ! 1,050,905 11,167 2,334 1,064,406

�� ! 6,704 5 490 7,199

�� ! 1,124,450 44,676 20,612 1,189,738

�� !"#$% 82,314 9,318 (2,203) 89,429

�� !"#$ - (2,414) 2,342 (72)
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3    �� !"# (�)

E    �� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234!"56 789�� !"#$%&'�� !"

�� !"�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*#$+,-�./0123456789�� !"�

�� !"�#$%&'()*+,�� �� !"#$%&'(� !")�*�� !"#$%&

�� �� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.

�� !"#$%&'()*

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'( !)* 10%�

F    �� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&�� !�"#$�� !"#$ !%�� 

��� �� !"#$%&'()$*+,'-./01�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*

�� !"#$�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#$%&'(�)*+(,-$./0123456789

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012�� !"#$%&'( )*+,-./�� 0

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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3    �� !"# (�)

F    �� !" (�)

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012+,34567*89:;<=>�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�� !"#$%&'()*+�� 

�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234.567689:5;�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0%'12�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01

���� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01$2'134

G    �� !"��#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789:;</=23>?@=A�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*�+,-./�

(1)   �� !"#$%&'�� !"#$�� !"#$�� !"#$�� !"#$�� !"�

�� !�� !"�� !

�� !"#$%&"#'()*+,-./0 12�� !"#$�%&!"'

(2)   ��

�� !"#$%&'()*%+,-.�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'�� !

�� !"#�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0!12!3456789

�� !"#$%&!'�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'

��

(3)   �� !

�� !"#$%&'("#)*+,-./0123"#456)789:;!<�� !"#�$%

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.*/0�1�� !"#$%&'()*+,&

�� !"#$

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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3    �� !"# (�)

G    �� !"��#$%&'() (�)

(4)   �� !

�� !"# !$%#&'()*+,-./+01 2�� !"#$%&'()*%+,-(�.

�� !"#$

(5)   �� !"#$%�� !"�� !

�� !"#$%&'(&)*%+,-./01-�234�� !"#$%&'()*+,&�-$

�� !

�� !"#$%&'(#)*+,�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !"#$%&'�()*+,(-./0

� 2004 �� 2003 � 12 � 31 ���� !"#$%&'()$%*+,-./01234�

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"

�� !"# 1,766 1,738 1,778 1,739

�� �� 1,389,186 1,120,885 1,398,081 1,129,928

�� !"

�� ! 95,935 65,743 95,908 66,558

�� !"#$%&' 83,612 51,046 88,747 56,713

�� !"#$ ! 1,274,831 1,064,406 1,276,734 1,069,394

�� ! �� !
2004 2003 2004 2003
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4    �� !"#

5    �� !

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� !

�� !"# 291 202

�� 68,780 56,565

�� ! 2,250 2,250

�� ! 622 76

�� 51 74

71,994 59,167

�� !

�� !"#$%& 613 387

�� !"#$%&' 3,739 2,918

�� !"#$ ! 36,600 31,438

�� 1 4

40,953 34,747

�� !"# 31,041 24,420

2004 2003

�� !"#$ 833 1,644
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6    ��(��)��

7    �� !

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� !"#$%�

    - �� !" 475 507

    - �� !" (338) (448)

137 59

   - �� !" 151 167

   - �� !" (14) (33)

137 134

�� !"#$ (478) 10

(204) 203

2004 2003

�� ! 538 398

�� !" 279 237

�� !" 90 88

�� !"#$ 157 157

�� 73 58

�� !"#$ 3,528 2,938

�� 413 390

5,078 4,266
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�� !"#$%&'()*+",-./"01�� !"#$�

8    �� 

9    �� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� !" 6,082 4,233

�� !" (�� 17) 1,806 1,022

7,888 5,255

2004 2003

�� ! 25,297 18,467

�� 33%�� !"#$%&! 8,348 6,094

�� !

    - �� ! (283) (201)

    - �� !"#$% (743) (743)

�� !"#$%& 413 -

�� !"#$%&'() 141 105

�� 12 -

7,888 5,255

2004 2003

�� !"#$%&'�� !"#

    �� !"# (�� 11) 28,576 16,143
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12    �� !"#�� $%

10    �� !"#

11    �� ��!"#

�� !"#��$��%&'()�

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� !"#$�� !"#

    �� !"# (�� 11) 1,254 1,892

�� !"# 196 193

1,450 2,085

2004 2003

�� !"#$%& 28,576 16,143

�� !"# 1,254 1,892

�� ! 1,325 839

31,155 18,874

2004 2003

�� !"�

�� !"#$�� ! 1,684 314

�� !"#$�� !

�� !" 100 379

�� !" 32 -

�� !" 343 128

2,159 821
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12    �� !"#�� $% (�)

13    �� ��!"#$

�� !"#$%�

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� !"�

�� !"#$�� !

�� !" 100 379

�� !" 238 69

338 448

�� 1,408,154 1,138,099

�� !�� 11� 1,325 1,839

�� ! 3,335 2,313

1,412,814 1,142,251

���� !"# (23,628) (21,366)

1,389,186 1,120,885

2004 2003
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�� !"#$��%&'()*(�� !��� !�)�� !�" #$%&'()1,000�� !"

�� �� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� 1999�12�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*1,000�� �� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'(�� !"

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%$&'()*+1,000�� !"#$%&'()*+, -./

�� !"#$%&�� !2.25%��� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*+,%&-

13    �� ��!"#$(�)

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�

14    �� !"��

�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� !"#$ 16,531 13,833

�� ! 7,097 7,533

23,628 21,366

2004 2003

�� ! 21,366 21,726

�� ! 3,826 2,164

�� ! (1,832) (2,583)

�� ! 268 59

�� ! 23,628 21,366

�� 100,000 100,000

�� !"�� !" 527�� 

(2003��� 665�� )�� !" 3,154 3,016

103,154 103,016

2004 2003
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14    �� !"�� (�)

1999 � 11 � 20 ���� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+, 1,000�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$%&

2000 � 7 � 15 ���� !"#$%&�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&'()*2001� 10� 8�� !�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01-23&456(���2001�152�)��� !"#$%&

�� !"#$!%

�� !"#$%&'()"#$%*+,- 3,118�� (2003���� 3,118�� )��� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-%./01234560789:;<=>?@ABC 527�� 

(2003��� 665�� )�� !" 2,591��  (2003���� 2,453�� )��� !"#$%

�� ! 563��  (2003 ���� 563�� ) �

* �� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'&(

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%#$&'()*+*%,-./%012

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'(

15    ��

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� !"�

�� ! ** � �� !�� ! 34,180 7,395

�� !" * � �� !�� ! 8,125 20,757

42,305 28,152

�� !"#�

�� ! ** � �� !�� ! 1,766 1,738

44,071 29,890
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15    �� (�)

 �� !"#$%&'()*(2003 ���� 1,924�� )�

 2004�� !"#$%&'()*+,- 15,672�� (2003 ���� 716�� )��� !"

�� 1,759�� (2003 ���� 380�� )�

 �� !"#$%& '()*+,-./01*234567�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0+123456789:;<"=>?

�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234

 �� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�/01231456789�� !"#

�� !"#$%&�'()*+,-.%&�/01�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"

�� !"#$%&'(�� !�� !"#$%&'()*

 �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0+1�� 

�� !"#�$%&'(%�)*+,$%-.�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()�� �� !"#$%&�'()*+�� !"#$%&'(&)*

�� !

**�� !"#$%&'��()*1,531�� (2003���� 1,175�� )��� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()��*+$,-*+.�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01��

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+,-. 26�

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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15    �� (�)

�� !"#$%�

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2003 � 1 � 1�� 34,452 497 34,949

�� ! 36,613 1,241 37,854

�� !(�� �� !") (42,092) - (42,092)

�� ! 421 - 421

�� ! (1,242) - (1,242)

2003 � 12 � 31�� 28,152 1,738 29,890

2004 � 1 � 1�� 28,152 1,738 29,890

�� ! 71,350 416 71,766

�� !(�� �� !") (60,248) (388) (60,636)

�� ! 1,770 - 1,770

�� !"# 333 - 333

�� !" 948 - 948

2004 � 12 � 31�� 42,305 1,766 44,071

�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !" �� !"# ��
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16    �� !"��

�� !"#$%�

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� !"�� 3,144 2,623

�� ! (528) (386)

�� 2,616 2,237

�� ! 80 175

2,696 2,412

��

2004� 1� 1�� 2,074 303 21 225 2,623

���� ! 453 46 1 36 536

���� ! (5) (2) - (8) (15)

2004� 12� 31�� 2,522 347 22 253 3,144

�� !

2004� 1� 1�� 129 160 10 87 386

���� ! 74 46 3 27 150

���� ! (1) (2) - (5) (8)

2004� 12� 31�� 202 204 13 109 528

��

2004� 12� 31�� 2,320 143 9 144 2,616

2003� 12� 31�� 1,945 143 11 138 2,237

�� �� �� ��
�� �� �� �� ��
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17    �� !"

�� !"#$%&'�

�� !"(��)�� !"#$�

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� ! 3,608 4,566

�� !"# (�� 8) (1,806) (1,022)

�� !"#$%&' (313) -

�� (�� 24) - 64

�� ! 1,489 3,608

�� !"# 2,749 2,840

�� !"# 419 1,236

�� !"#$%&' 174 220

�� !"#$% - 413

�� !"# 42 54

�� !"#$%&'( (45) (19)

�� !"#$%&'()*+, (666) (603)

�� !"#$%&' (931) (553)

�� !"#$%&' (313) -

�� 60 20

1,489 3,608

2004 2003
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17    �� !" (�)

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567�

18    �� !

19    �� !

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� !"# 91 903

�� !"# 817 94

�� !"#$%&' 46 (220)

�� !"#$% 413 2

�� !"# 12 2

�� !"#$%&'( 26 17

�� !"#$%&'()*+, 63 81

�� !"#$%&' 378 62

�� !"#$%&' 313 -

�� (40) 81

2,119 1,022

2004 2003

�� !"#$%& 1,150 -

�� 551 307

1,701 307

2004 2003

�� ! 90,798 62,205

�� ! 4,993 2,796

�� !" 144 742

95,935 65,743
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20    �� !"#$%&'

21    �� !

�� !"#$%&'()*"#+%,-"#./01234"#5678�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&�'()*+,-

�� !"#$%&%'()*+,-./0"#1234*5678759:"#5;<=

�� !"#$%&%'()*+,-./

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� !"# -�� ! 39,539 40,442

�� !"# 36,776 5,304

�� !"#$%&' 5,115 3,512

�� !"# 2,182 1,788

83,612 51,046

�� !" (%) 2004 2003

�� !"#$%&'()* 3.24(2003: 3.31) 1,232,619 1,050,905

�� !"#$%&'() 3.65(2003: 3.65) 4,176 4,179

�� !"#$%&'() 5.40(2003: 6.92) 18,030 9,322

1,254,825 1,064,406



105

22    �� !

23    �� !

24    �� !

*   �� !"#�$%&' 500�� �� !"�#$%�� 2003 � 12 � 31 ���� !"#�

�� !"#$%

** �� !"#$%&�� 2003�� !" 134�� !"#$%&'() 64�� !"#$%&

�(�� 17)�� !" 198�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&'( !)*+,-./ !0123�� !"#$%&'()*!+%&,-.

�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%& 5.42 (2003��) 20,006 -

�� !" (�) 2004 2003

2004 2003

�� !" 5,651 4,143

�� !" 1,183 1,075

�� 1,709 1,533

8,543 6,751

2004 2003

�� ! 50,000 49,050

�� ! * - 752

�� !"#$%&'()*�� ** - 198

�� ! 50,000 50,000



106
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25    �� !"# $"

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%��"&$'�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$%&'()*+,(-./�� !"#$%&'()*+,'()-'")./0#1

�� !"#$%&'

�� !"# 2004�� !"#$%�� !"#$ 540��(2003��3,512�� )�� 2003�� 

�� !"#$%&'(10%(2003��25%)�� !�� !"#$%&'()*#$'+),�� 

�� !�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

�� !"#$%&!'()

�� !"#$�� 2003�� 653�� !"#$%&'()*+,$-&.�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%�� !"#

�� 2004�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$% 2004�� !"#$%"&$'

26    �� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()�

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345"#6�� !"#$%!&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,$-.'()*+/012�� !"#$%&'() *+,�(�

�� !"#$%&!")�� !"#$%(�� !"#$%&')��� !"#$%�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�123"4567�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�/

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� 2004� 12� 31���� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$�� !"#$%& 49��

�� !"# 2018� 11�� !"#$%&%'

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()



107

26    �� !"# (�)

�� !"#$%& '()*+�,-./01234$ !"#56789:;�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'#( )*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0,-1�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'())&�*+,-./�� !"#$%&'(#$)*+�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&�� !"# !$%& !'()*+,-./01234�� !"#$%&"

�� !"#$%�

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !
�� ��

2004 � 12 � 31 �

�� ! 1,766 100 100

�� ! 5,846 343 -

�� ! 19,025 32 238

�� !�" 20,000 - -

�� !"# 538 - -

�� !"#$% /�� ! 475 338

2003 � 12 � 31 �

�� ! 4,281 379 379

�� ! 2,594 128 -

�� ! 7,396 - 69

�� !"# 621 - -

�� !"#$% /�� ! 507 448

�� / ��
��



108

�� ! Financial Statements

26    �� !"# (�)

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./)01234,56789:;<�� !"#$%&'()*

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+'(,

�� !"#$%&'()*993�� (2003���� 554�� )�� !"#$%&'()%&�

�� !"#$%&'()*+,(��15)��� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345678

�� !"#$%&'()*+,%-./01

�� !"#$%&'()538�� (2003���� 621�� )�� !"#$%&�'()*+,

�� !"#$%&(��15)��� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789�� !

�� !"#$%&'!()*+,�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$%!"&'()*+250,000�� (2003���� 180,000�� )�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&'()*+,#-.(�� 21 � 22)��� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,%-./01�� !"#$%&'() 20,000 ��

�(2003���)��  21��� !"#$%�&'()*+,-.�/01234�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+%,-./0�� !"#$�� 

�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&'()*+'(,-./012345�$6�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#

�� �� !"#$%"&'()*+�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01-2345

27    �� !"#

�� !"#$%$&'()*+,-+./0123456�� !"#$%&�� !"#�"$%

�� !"#$%!&'()*+, 19%� 29%�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&�'()*+,

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�1�� !"#$%&'()*+",-./(01

�� !"�� !"#$%&'()*+, 2004�� !" 40�� (2003��� 31�� )�

�� !"#

2004�� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()



109

28    �� !"#$

�� !"#

2004 �� !"#$%

(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2004 2003

�� !"#�

�� !"# 14,500 10,500

�� 35,826 993

�� !" 2,041 6,369

�� ! 766,094 758,219

�� !"#�

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�

�� !" 54

�� !�"# 56

110



110

Report of the Independent Accountants

To the Management of China Development Bank

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of China Development Bank (the “Bank”) as of 31 December

2004 and the related statements of income, cash flows and changes in owner’s equity for the year then

ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s management.  Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.  Those Standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Bank as of 31 December 2004 and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the

year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Beijing, People’s Republic of China

18 February 2005

Business is undertaken in the registered name of PricewaterhouseCoopers China Limited, incorporated in Bermuda with Limited Liability.
Registered address is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, Bermuda.

PricewaterhouseCoopers China Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton, Bermuda
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Governor: Chen Yuan Head of Finance: Shu Jiawei

Notes 2004 2003

Interest income 4 71,994 59,167

Interest expense 4 (40,953) (34,747)

Net interest income 4 31,041 24,420

Fee and commission income 305 123

Fee and commission expense  (15) (7)

Net fee and commission income 290 116

Dividend income 5 833 1,644

Gains (Losses) on investment

securities, net 15 2,103 (821)

Operating expenses 7 (5,078) (4,266)

Provision for credit losses 13,14 (3,688) (2,829)

Other (expenses) income, net 6 (204) 203

Profit before tax 25,297 18,467

Income tax expense 8 (7,888) (5,255)

Net profit 17,409 13,212

�� ! Financial Statements
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
BALANCE SHEET

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Governor: Chen Yuan Head of Finance: Shu Jiawei

Note 2004 2003

ASSETS

Cash and balance with the PBOC 9 28,576 16,143

Due from other banks 10 1,450 2,085

Trading assets 12 2,159 821

Loans, net 13 1,389,186 1,120,885

Cinda bonds, net 14 103,154 103,016

Investment securities

- Available-for-sale 15 42,305 28,152

- Held-to-maturity 15 1,766 1,738

Fixed assets, net 16 2,696 2,412

Deferred tax assets 17 1,489 3,608

Other assets 18 1,701 307

TOTAL ASSETS 1,574,482 1,279,167
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been approved for issue by the Bank’s management on 18 February 2005.

Governor: Chen Yuan Head of Finance: Shu Jiawei

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
BALANCE SHEET (CONT’D)

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

LIABILITIES AND OWNER’S EQUITY

Liabilities

Deposits from other banks 744 1,344

Due to customers 19 95,935 65,743

Securities sold under repurchase

agreements 3,006 -

Borrowings from other banks and

governments 20 83,612 51,046

Trading liabilities 12 338 448

Debt securities in issue 21 1,254,825 1,064,406

Subordinated debts 22 20,006 -

Other liabilities 23 8,543 6,751

Total liabilities 1,467,009 1,189,738

Owner’s equity

Paid-in capital 24 50,000 50,000

Reserves 25 6,336 5,161

Retained earnings 51,137 34,268

Total owner’s equity 107,473 89,429

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER’S

EQUITY 1,574,482 1,279,167

Note 2004 2003
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Notes 2004 2003

Cash flows from (used in) operating
activities

Profit before tax 25,297 18,467
Adjustments:

Provision for credit losses 13,14 3,688 2,829
Write-back of provision for doubtful receivables - (17)
(Write-back of) Impairment provision for

investments (333) 1,242
Gain on disposal of investment securities 15 (1,770) (421)
Depreciation and amortisation 157 157
Amortisation of premium/ discount of

debt securities in issue 1,925 1,620
Cash dividends 5 (833) (1,644)

Net changes in:
Restricted balance with other banks (3) (12)
Trading assets (1,338) (141)
Securities purchased under resale agreements - 9,228
Loans to banks 1,000 1,000
Loans to customers (263,084) (235,253)
Cinda bonds - (635)
Other assets (223) 1,151
Trading liabilities (110) (224)
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 3,006 -
Deposits from other banks (600) (530)
Due to customers 30,192 25,725
Other liabilities 3,787 1,696

Income tax paid (4,575) (5,664)
Net cash used in operating activities (203,817) (181,426)

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Purchases of investment securities (71,804) (35,959)
Proceeds from disposal of investment securities 49,969 28,584
Cash dividends received 833 1,644
Purchases of fixed assets and other assets (467) (508)
Disposal of fixed assets and other assets 7 74
Net cash used in investing activities (21,462) (6,165)

Cash flows from (used in) financing activities
Proceeds from borrowed funds and debt securities 457,965 561,131
Repayments of borrowed funds and debt securities (220,405) (363,547)
Proceeds from capital contribution - 645
Net cash from financing activities 237,560 198,229

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Governor: Chen Yuan Head of Finance: Shu Jiawei
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Governor: Chen Yuan Head of Finance: Shu Jiawei

Note 2004 2003

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 12,281 10,638

Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of
year 18,874 8,236

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year 11 31,155 18,874

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow
information

Interest received 70,715 57,757
Interest paid (37,352) (30,756)

Investing and financing activities that do
not involve cash receipts and payments

Increase in equity securities resulting from
debt to equity swap - 1,924

Decrease in equity securities resulting from
converting equity to debt (9,557) (13,901)

Capitalisation of interest payable as borrowings (311) (648)
In-kind contributions recognised as capital - (107)
Net changes in investing and financing

activities that do not involve cash receipts
and payments (9,868) (12,732)
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the “Bank”), a wholly state-owned development financial institution, was established
on 1 July 1994 in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”).  The address of its registered office
is No.29, Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing, PRC.

The Bank’s primary purpose is to foster the economic development in China through the provision of long-
term financing of key projects and initiatives supporting the Government’s national economic development
plan and industry policies.  The Bank’s current principal activities include raising funds to support its lending
activities and extending loans in both Renminbi (“Rmb”) and foreign currencies to infrastructure, basic
industry and pillar industry construction projects.  This involves mobilising substantial financial resources,
including the issuance of debentures denominated in Rmb and foreign currencies in the domestic and
international capital markets; and borrowings from foreign governments, international financial institu-
tions and foreign commercial banks.  At present, the Bank conducts its principal business activities exclu-
sively in the PRC.

At 31 December 2004, the Bank had 4,678 employees (2003: 4,224).

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out

below:

A Basis of presentation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”). The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale investment securities, financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading
and all derivative contracts.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the
use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period.  Material estimates that are susceptible to significant
change in the near-term include the determination of (i) the impairment for loan losses and (ii) the fair value
of available-for-sale equity investments and derivatives.  Although these estimates are based on historical
experience and other factors, including management’s best knowledge of current events and expectation
of future events, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

The International Accounting Standard Board has issued a number of new IFRSs and revised International
Accounting Standards (“IAS”) which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2005.  The Bank has not early adopted these revised IASs or new IFRSs for the year ended 31 December
2004. The Bank has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these revised IASs and new IFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these standards would have a significant impact on its results
of operations and financial position.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

B Foreign currency translation

The Bank’s reporting currency is Renminbi (“Rmb”), the lawful currency of the PRC.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Rmb at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the

transactions.  Gains and losses resulting from settlements of such transactions and from the translations of

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement at

the exchange rates prevailing on settlement date and the balance sheet date, respectively.

Translation differences on debt securities and other monetary financial assets measured at fair value are

included in foreign exchange gains and losses.

C Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments including currency forwards, currency and interest rate swaps are initially

recognised in the balance sheet at cost (including transaction costs) and subsequently are re-measured at

their fair values.  Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices and discounted cash flow models as

appropriate.   All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value

is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as credit default derivatives allowing a

bond issuer to transfer the credit risk of the underlying bond, which it may not own, to another party, are

treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the

host contract.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in other income.

While certain derivative transactions are intended to provide effective economic hedges under the Bank’s

risk management positions, they do not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific rules in the IAS 39

and are therefore treated as derivatives held for trading with changes in fair value reported as other income.

The Bank has no derivative positions that are accounted for as hedges.

The fair values of derivative instruments are disclosed in Note 26.

D Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a

legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,

or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

E Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all interest bearing instruments on

an accrual basis using the effective yield method based on the actual purchase price.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,

interest income is recognised using the interest rate used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose

of measuring the impairment loss.

F Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are recognised on an accrual basis when the related service has been provided.  Fees

and commissions arising from negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third

party, such as the purchase or sale of businesses, or issuance of securities, are recognised on completion of

the underlying transaction. Fees earned on guarantees and letters of credit are recognised on a straight-line

basis over the period covered by the guarantees or letters of credit.

G Resale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to linked repurchase agreements (“repos”) are retained in the accounts as investment

securities and the related liability is recorded as securities sold under repurchase agreements.  Securities

purchased under agreements to resell (“resales”) are recognised in the balance sheet as an advance to the

counterparty. The difference between sale (purchase) and repurchase (resale) price is treated as interest and

accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective yield method.

H Trading assets

Trading assets include derivatives and trading securities which were either acquired for generating a profit

from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer’s margin, or are securities included in a portfolio in which a

pattern of short-term profit taking exists.  Trading securities are initially recognised at cost and subsequently

re-measured based on quoted bid prices. All related realised and unrealised gains or losses are included in

other income. Interest earned whilst holding trading securities is reported as interest income.  Dividends

declared are included in dividend income.

All purchases and sales of trading securities that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation

or market convention (“regular way” purchases and sales) are recognised at trade date, which is the date

that the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset.  Otherwise, such transactions are treated as derivatives

until settlement occurs.  Transaction costs are recognised as other expense when incurred.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

I Loans and provisions for impaired loans

Loans to customers and banks are reported on the balance sheet at amortised cost, which includes accrued

interest receivable, net of provision for impairment. All loans and advances are recognised when cash is
advanced to borrowers.  The amounts of loan origination fees and the related costs are insignificant.

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a loan is impaired.

Objective evidence may include significant financial difficulty of the borrower, a breach of contract such as
default or delinquency, and granting concessions to a borrower. Specifically, in this regard, once a loan

becomes past due 90 days as to the payment of either principal or interest, it is considered impaired. If,
however, objective evidence of impairment related to a specific loan is identified prior to a 90-day delinquency,

that loan would be considered impaired.  If there is objective evidence that the impairment loss on a loan
carried at amortised cost has been incurred, a provision for loan impairment is established for each impaired

loan. The amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable
amount, being the present value of expected cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees

and collateral, discounted at the original effective interest rates of the impaired loans.

Upon impairment, the accrual of interest income based on the original terms of the loan is discontinued,
and the accrual of interest on the recoverable amount of the loan is thereafter recognised based on the rate

of interest that was used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the recoverable
amount.

Upon approval from the Ministry of Finance (“MoF”), loans that have been deemed uncollectible by

management are written off against the related provision for loan impairment.

If the amount of the impairment subsequently decreases due to an event occurring after the write-down,
the release of the provision is credited to provision for loan losses.

The provision for loan impairment is measured and recognised for loans that have been individually identified as

being impaired, and also covers unidentified losses which are inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance
sheet date, based on an analysis of historical losses and changes in asset quality.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

J Investment securities

The Bank classifies its investment securities into the following two categories: held-to-maturity and

available-for-sale. Investment securities with fixed maturity where management has both the intent and
the ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity.  Investment securities intended to be held

for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or equity prices are classified as available-for-sale.  Management determines the

appropriate classification of its investments at the time of the purchase.

Investment securities are initially recorded at cost, plus the related transaction costs directly attributable to
their acquisition. Available-for-sale investment securities are subsequently re-measured based on quoted

bid prices or amounts derived from cash flow models.  Fair values for unlisted equity securities, including
those received in debt-to-equity swaps, are estimated using cash flow models and, where appropriate,

latest transaction price, valuation of investments, price/earnings or price/cash flow ratios refined to reflect
the specific circumstances of the issuer. Significant assumptions used in cash flow models include estimates

of operating cash flows and guarantor support. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity net of income tax

effect. Equity securities for which fair values cannot be measured reliably are recognised at cost less
impairment.  When the securities are disposed of or impaired, the related accumulated fair value adjustments are

included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

Held-to-maturity investment securities are carried at amortised cost using the effective yield method,

including accrued interest receivable, less any provision for impairment.

An investment security is impaired if its carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that an investment
security is impaired. Objective evidence may include significant financial difficulty of the issuer, a breach of

contract such as default or delinquency, disappearance of an active market because of financial difficulties
and, in the case of equity securities, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. If

there is objective evidence on impairment loss on held-to-maturity investment securities carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s

carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. If there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale investment security is

impaired, the cumulative loss that has been recognised directly in equity shall be removed from equity and
recognised in income statement.

Interest earned whilst holding investment securities is reported as interest income. Dividend receivables are

included separately in dividend income when a dividend is declared.

All regular way purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised at trade date, which is the date

that the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset. All other purchases and sales of investment securities
are recognised as derivative forward transactions until settlement.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

K Fixed assets

All fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of such assets to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 30 - 35 years

Office equipment 5 - 11 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years

Motor vehicles 6 years

No depreciation is provided against construction in progress.

Fixed assets are periodically reviewed for impairment.  Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater

than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and

losses on disposal of fixed assets are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are taken into

account in determining operating profit. Repairs and renewals are charged to the income statement when

the expenditure is incurred.

L Operating leases

The Bank entered into various operating lease agreements to rent its head office and branches’ office and

facilities.  The total payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be

made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes

place.

All leasing activities engaged by the Bank to date have involved solely operating leases.  The Bank has not

conducted any leasing activities as lessor.

M Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than 3

months’ maturity from the date of acquisition including: cash and balance with the People’s Bank of China

(“PBOC”), and amounts due from other banks.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

N Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the income statement when (i) the Bank has a present legal or constructive

obligation, as a result of past events, (ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic

benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and (iii) a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation

can be made.

O Employee benefits

The Bank participates in a number of defined contribution plans administered and regulated by local

governments throughout the country.  Once the related contributions have been made, the Bank has no

further obligations or liabilities to retired employees. These plans are generally funded by payments from

employees and the Bank.

The Bank’s contributions to these plans are charged to the income statement in the period to which they

relate.

P Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the accounts. Currently enacted tax rate

of 33% at balance sheet date is used in the determination of deferred income tax.

The principal temporary differences arise from provision for impaired loans, investment securities, doubtful

receivables and revaluation of available-for-sale investment securities and financial derivatives.  Deferred tax

assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.  Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of

available-for-sale investment securities is charged or credited directly to equity, and is subsequently recognised

in the income statement together with the deferred gain or loss when the related investments are sold.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law in each jurisdiction, is recognised as an

expense in the period in which profit arises.  The tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward

are recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which

these losses can be utilised.

Q Borrowed funds

Borrowings are recognised initially at the actual proceeds received (fair value of consideration received), net

of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost and any difference

between net proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective yield method.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

R Paid-in capital

The MoF has fully funded the Bank’s required paid-in capital.

S Fiduciary activities

Assets, and income arising thereon, together with related undertakings to return such assets to customers

are excluded from these financial statements where the Bank acts in a fiduciary capacity such as nominee,

trustee or agent.

T Contingent liabilities and contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within

the control of the Bank.  It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised

because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation

cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.  When a change in

the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow becomes probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

U Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the

current year.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

A Strategy in using financial instruments

By its nature the Bank is engaged in the extensive use of financial instruments.  The Bank raises funds primarily

by the issuance of debts at both fixed and floating rates and for various periods and seeks to earn above

average interest margins by investing these funds in long-term infrastructure project lending.  While

operating in China under the interest rate scheme regulated by the PBOC, the Bank seeks to increase these

margins by issuing long-term bonds with different maturities and reducing its cost of funds to the extent

possible.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  (CONT’D)

A Strategy in using financial instruments (cont’d)

The Bank engages in derivative transactions, which include currency forwards, currency and interest rate

swaps, primarily with its borrowers. In order to offset the potential risks related to the derivative

transactions entered into with its borrowers, the Bank often enters into similar or substantially similar

contracts with other financial institutions.

In order to hedge its open positions in foreign currencies and interest rate, the Bank also enters into

currency and interest rate swaps to provide effective controls on the Bank’s potential risk exposures in the

related areas.

The Bank does not conduct proprietary derivatives trading activities.  Please refer to Note 2C for risk

management strategies regarding derivative financial instruments.

B Credit risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts

in full when due.  Credit risk is increased when counterparties are concentrated in the same industries or

geographical regions. The Bank’s lending activities are undertaken entirely within China and concentrated

in seven targeted industries.  Different areas in China and different industries have their own unique

characteristics in economic development and, therefore, could present different credit risks.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in

relation to single borrower, industry and location at provincial level.  Such risks are monitored on a regular

basis and subject to an annual review.

To manage its credit risk, the Bank applies rigorous underwriting procedures to each loan application and

has developed a disciplined credit risk management process.  Exposure to credit risk is managed through

regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment

obligations.  Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and guarantees.

Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required.

Guarantees and letters of credit, which represent irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments

in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties, carry the same credit risk as loans.

In some cases, guarantee deposits are received by the Bank to lessen the credit risks related to certain of

these commitments provided by the Bank.  The guarantee deposit which is at certain percentage of the

notional amount of the guarantee and letters of credit and other credit related commitments is determined

by the creditworthiness of the customer.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

B Credit risk (cont’d)

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to extend credit in the form of

loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Bank

is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the likely

amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments since most commitments to extend credit are

contingent upon customers maintaining their level of creditworthiness. The Bank monitors the term to

maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of

credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

* Eastern China includes Beijing, Liaoning, Hebei, Tianjin, Shandong, Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Fujian,

Guangdong and Hainan.

** Central China includes Jilin, Heilongjiang, Shanxi, Henan, Hubei, Anhui, Hunan and Jiangxi.

*** Western China includes Xinjiang, Tibet, Gansu, Qinghai, Ningxia, Inner Mongolia, Shaanxi, Sichuan,

Chongqing, Guizhou, Yunnan and Guangxi.

Loans and advances by geography

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Loans to customers

Eastern China * 753,150 53 607,669 53

Central China ** 332,043 24 284,295 25

Western China *** 322,961 23 246,135 22

Loans to banks 1,325 - 1,839 -

Accrued interest receivable 3,335 - 2,313 -

1,412,814 100 1,142,251 100

2004 2003
Amount % Amount %
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

B Credit risk (cont’d)

Loans and advances by industry

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2004 2003
Amount % Amount %

Loans to customers

  Electric power and heating 371,962 26 340,745 30

  Road transportation 313,824 22 235,192 21

  Water conservancy, environment

    protection and public utilities

    management 312,552 22 182,506 16

Railway transportation 91,907 7 118,302 10

Petroleum, petrochemical and

    chemical industry 80,616 6 40,019 4

  Telecommunication and other

    information transmission

    service 50,944 4 42,724 4

  Urban public transportation 49,339 3 68,892 6

  Other 137,010 10 109,719 9

Loans to banks 1,325 - 1,839 -

Accrued interest receivable 3,335 - 2,313 -

1,412,814 100 1,142,251 100
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C Market risk

The Bank takes on exposure to market risk.  Market risk arises from open positions in interest rate products,

currency products and derivative financial instrument transactions, which are exposed to general and specific

market movements. The Bank does not have significant involvement in derivative financial instrument

transactions. The Bank believes that its exposure to market risk is not significant in light of the regulated

interest rate environment in the PRC and the Government’s current policy of maintaining a stable exchange

rate between the Rmb and United State dollars (“USD”).  There can be no assurance that these conditions

will continue in the future.  If these conditions change, the Bank’s exposure to market risk would increase.

D Currency risk

The Bank conducts the majority of its businesses in Rmb, with certain foreign currency transactions in USD,

Euros (“EURO”), Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and to a much lesser extent, other currencies. Through foreign

currency swaps, the Bank maintains its foreign currency risk mainly in USD.  The exchange rate between

Rmb to USD is set by the PBOC.  In recent years, the PBOC has maintained the exchange rate with USD in a

narrow band (from USD N�RMB 8.2765 to USD N�RMB 8.2776 from 2003 to 2004).  There can be no

assurance that this practice will continue in the future.  If this practice does not continue, the Bank’s

exposure to currency risk would increase.  The Bank is exposed to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing

foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. The management sets limits on the

level of exposure by currency, which are monitored regularly.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

B Credit risk (cont’d)

Loans and advances by loan purpose

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2004 2003
Amount % Amount %

Loans to customers

Infrastructure loans 1,338,841 95 1,089,153 95

Working capital loans 51,721 4 31,360 3

Technological renovation loans 17,592 1 17,586 2

Loans to banks 1,325 - 1,839 -

Accrued interest receivable 3,335 - 2,313 -

1,412,814 100 1,142,251 100
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

D Currency risk (cont’d)

The table below summarises the Bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the

year.  Included in the table are the Bank’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts in Rmb, categorised by

the original currency.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

As of 31 December 2004

Assets:

Cash and balance with banks 29,638 173 215 30,026

Loans, net 1,308,501 60,769 19,916 1,389,186

Cinda bonds, net 103,154 - - 103,154

Investment securities 38,861 5,210 - 44,071

Other 7,431 171 443 8,045

Total assets 1,487,585 66,323 20,574 1,574,482

Liabilities:

Due to other banks and customers 95,915 741 23 96,679

Securities sold under repurchase

agreements 3,006 - - 3,006

Borrowings from other banks

and governments 32,170 31,670 19,772 83,612

Debt securities in issue and

subordinated debts 1,252,625 16,076 6,130 1,274,831

Other 8,469 412 - 8,881

Total liabilities 1,392,185 48,899 25,925 1,467,009

Net on balance sheet position 95,400 17,424 (5,351) 107,473

Currency forwards and swaps - (5,846) 6,250 404

Other
RMB USD currencies Total
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

D Currency risk (cont’d)

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Other
RMB USD currencies Total

As of 31 December 2003

Assets:

Cash and balance with banks 18,204 5 19 18,228

Loans, net 1,051,480 51,522 17,883 1,120,885

Cinda bonds, net 103,016 -  - 103,016

Investment securities 27,531 2,359 - 29,890

Other 6,533 108 507 7,148

Total assets 1,206,764 53,994 18,409 1,279,167

Liabilities:

Due to other banks and customers 65,822 1,248 17 67,087

Borrowings from other banks and

governments 1,019 32,256 17,771 51,046

Debt securities in issue and

subordinated debts 1,050,905 11,167 2,334 1,064,406

Other 6,704 5 490 7,199

Total liabilities 1,124,450 44,676 20,612 1,189,738

Net on balance sheet position 82,314 9,318 (2,203) 89,429

Currency forwards and swaps - (2,414) 2,342 (72)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

E Interest rate risk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on

its financial position and cash flows.  Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may

reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. Currently, interest rates for loans and

deposits within mainland China are set by the PBOC.  The Bank operates its business predominantly in

China under the interest rate scheme regulated by the PBOC.  It is normal practice for the interest rates of

both interest bearing assets and liabilities to move in the same directions.  Consequently, the Bank’s

exposure to interest rate risk is not significant, except for the foreign currency denominated investment in

bonds and debt securities in issue.  However, there is no guarantee that the PBOC will continue this practice

in future. The Bank’s exposure to interest rate risk could be increased if the PBOC changes its regulation and

practice related to the regulation of interest rates in China.

According to the PBOC regulations, loan interest rates can be set up to 10% below the PBOC benchmark

interest rates.

F Liquidity risk

The Bank is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from current accounts, maturing deposits,

debt securities in issue and subordinated debts, loan draw downs, guarantees and other calls on cash

settled derivatives.  The Bank does not maintain cash resources to meet all of these needs as experience

shows that a minimum level of re-investment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of

certainty.  Management sets limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet such

calls and on the minimum level of interbank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover

withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

The table below analyses the assets and liabilities of the Bank into relevant maturity groupings based on the

remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

F Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities of assets and liabilities is fundamental to the

management of the Bank. It is unusual for banks ever to be completely matched since businesses transacted are

often of uncertain terms and of different types.  An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability,

but also increases the risk of losses.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and letters of credit are considerably less than the

amounts under commitments because the Bank does not generally expect the third party to draw funds

under those agreements. The total outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does

not necessarily represent future cash requirements, since many of these commitments will expire or terminate

without being funded.

G Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market information and information

about the various financial instruments. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value.

(1) Cash and balance with the PBOC, Amounts due from other banks, Deposits from other banks, Current

account balances of customers, Securities sold under repurchase agreements, Interest receivables and

payables, Other assets and Other liabilities

Given that maturities of these financial assets and liabilities are within one year, the carrying amount

approximates the fair value.

(2) Investment securities

The fair value of investment securities is based on quoted market price, if available.  If a quoted market price

is not available, fair value is estimated using cash flow model and, where appropriate, latest transaction

price, valuation of investments, price/earnings or price/cash flow ratios refined to reflect the specific circum-

stances of the issuer. In some cases, where information is not available to reliably estimate fair value, reference is

made to costs.

(3) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amount of variable rate loans and advances to customers is a reasonable estimate of fair value

because interest rates are tied to the PBOC rate and are adjusted when the PBOC announces interest rate

changes.  The fair value of fixed rate loans to customers is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis

utilising the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

G Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (cont’d)

(4) Due to customers

The fair value of fixed deposit is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis utilising the rates currently

offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

(5) Borrowings from other institutions, Debt securities in issue, Subordinated debts

The fair value of borrowings without quoted market price is calculated based on discounted cash flows

using interest rates for new borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

The aggregate fair values of debt securities are calculated based on quoted market prices.  For those

securities where quoted market prices are not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a

current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

The estimated fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments, of which the respective carrying values are

different, at 31 December 2004 and 2003 are summarised as follows:

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Financial assets

Held-to-maturity investment

securities  1,766 1,738 1,778 1,739

Loans, net 1,389,186 1,120,885 1,398,081 1,129,928

Financial liabilities

Due to customers 95,935 65,743 95,908 66,558

Borrowings from other banks and

governments 83,612 51,046 88,747 56,713

Debt securities in issue and

subordinated debts 1,274,831 1,064,406 1,276,734 1,069,394

Carrying Value Fair Value
2004 2003 2004 2003
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4 NET INTEREST INCOME

2004 2003

Interest income

Balance with the PBOC 291 202

Loans 68,780 56,565

Cinda bonds 2,250 2,250

Investment securities 622 76

Other 51 74

71,994 59,167

Interest expense

Due to customers and banks 613 387

Borrowings from other banks and governments 3,739 2,918

Debt securities in issue and subordinated debts 36,600 31,438

Other 1 4

40,953 34,747

Net interest income 31,041 24,420

5 DIVIDEND INCOME

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2004 2003

Available-for-sale investment securities 833 1,644
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6 OTHER (EXPENSES) INCOME, NET

7 OPERATING EXPENSES

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2004 2003

Derivative transactions:

   - Unrealised gains 475 507

   - Unrealised losses (338) (448)

137 59

   - Realised gains 151 167

   - Realised losses (14) (33)

137 134

Foreign exchange (losses) gains and other (478) 10

(204) 203

2004 2003

Staff costs 538 398

Administration expenses 279 237

Occupancy 90 88

Depreciation and amortisation 157 157

Travel expenses 73 58

Business tax and surcharges 3,528 2,938

Other 413 390

5,078 4,266
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8 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The actual income tax expense differs from the statutory income tax for the following reasons:

9 CASH AND BALANCE WITH THE PBOC

The entire balance with the PBOC is available for use in the Bank’s day to day operations.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Current tax 6,082 4,233

Deferred tax (Note 17) 1,806 1,022

7,888 5,255

2004 2003

2004 2003

Profit before tax 25,297 18,467

Tax calculated at the statutory rate of 33% (2003: 33%) 8,348 6,094

Non-taxable income:

  - Investment income (283) (201)

  - Interest income on Cinda bonds (743) (743)

Non-deductible loss on disposal of staff quarters 413 -

Non-deductible salary and other expenses 141 105

Other 12 -

7,888 5,255

2004 2003

Cash and balance with the PBOC,

included in cash and cash equivalents  (Note 11) 28,576 16,143
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10 DUE FROM OTHER BANKS

11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement consisted of the following:

12 TRADING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2004 2003

Trading assets:

Government bonds, unlisted at fair value 1,684 314

Derivatives, at fair value

  - Currency forwards 100 379

  - Interest rate swaps 32 -

  - Currency swaps 343 128

2,159 821

2004 2003

Cash and balance with the PBOC 28,576 16,143

Due from other banks 1,254 1,892

Loans to banks 1,325 839

31,155 18,874

2004 2003

Deposits with other banks, included in cash

equivalents (Note 11) 1,254 1,892

Restricted balances with other banks 196 193

1,450 2,085
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12 TRADING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

13 LOANS AND PROVISION FOR IMPAIRED LOANS

The composition of loans is as follows:

2004 2003

Loans to customers 1,408,154 1,138,099

Loans to banks (Note 11) 1,325 1,839

Accrued interest receivable 3,335 2,313

1,412,814 1,142,251

Less: Provision for impaired loans (23,628) (21,366)

1,389,186 1,120,885

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2004 2003

Trading liabilities:

Derivatives, at fair value

  - Currency forwards 100 379

  - Interest rate swaps 238 69

338 448
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The Cinda bonds are general debt obligations issued by China Cinda Asset Management Company (“Cinda”),
in exchange for certain non-performing loans transferred to Cinda by the Bank.  In accordance with the
related agreement defining the terms of this transaction between the Bank and Cinda, certain non-performing
loans with an aggregate carrying value of Rmb 100 billion were transferred to Cinda in December 1999.  The
Bank did not retain any control over or any continuing interest in the loans transferred to Cinda.  In exchange for
the transfer of the non-performing loans, Cinda issued to the Bank 10-year bonds with principal amount of Rmb
100 billion and an interest rate of 2.25% per annum.  Among other things, Cinda can redeem the bonds prior to
the stated maturity.

13 LOANS AND PROVISION FOR IMPAIRED LOANS (CONT’D)

The components of the Bank’s provision are summarised below:

Movement of provision for impaired loans:

14 CINDA BONDS, NET

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Unidentified impaired loans 16,531 13,833

Specifically identified impaired loans 7,097 7,533

23,628 21,366

2004 2003

2004 2003

At 1 January 21,366 21,726

Provision for the year 3,826 2,164

Write-off (1,832) (2,583)

Recoveries 268 59

At 31 December 23,628 21,366

Principal 100,000 100,000

Accrued interest receivable, net of provision

of Rmb 527 million (2003: Rmb 665 million) 3,154 3,016

103,154 103,016

2004 2003



142

�� ! Financial Statements

14 CINDA BONDS, NET (CONT’D)

On 20 November 1999, the State Council mandated that the Cinda bonds are guaranteed as to the payment of

principal by the MoF.

On 15 July 2000, the State Council mandated that the interest income received by the Bank related to the

Cinda bonds should not be distributed to the Bank’s shareholders.

In accordance with the Notice on Tax Exemption (Caishui [2001] No.152) issued jointly by the MoF and the

State Administration of Taxation on 8 October 2001, the related interest income from Cinda bonds is

exempted from business tax and income tax.

Included in the accrued interest receivable is overdue interest of Rmb 3,118 million (2003: Rmb 3,118

million).  A provision of Rmb 527 million (2003: Rmb 665 million), computed based on the present value of

expected cash flows from collection of interest discounted at the original effective rate of the Cinda bonds,

was set aside resulting in a net carrying amount of Rmb 2,591 million (2003: Rmb 2,453 million). The

remaining current portion of accrued interest amounted to Rmb 563 million (2003: Rmb 563 million).

15 INVESTMENT SECURITIES

*   Upon the approval of relevant authorities, the Bank has entered into debt-to-equity swap (“DES”)

transactions with certain of its borrowers.  In accordance with the related agreements, the Bank

forgives all or part of the loan principal outstanding, together with interest receivable, in exchange for

the borrower’s equity securities.  Each of the individual transactions was structured so that the fair value

of the equity securities received equalled the carrying value of the related loan and no gain or loss was

recorded.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Available-for-sale

Debt securities,** unlisted at fair value 34,180 7,395

Equity securities,* unlisted at fair value 8,125 20,757

42,305 28,152

Held-to-maturity

Debt securities,** unlisted at amortised cost 1,766 1,738

44,071 29,890

2004 2003
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15 INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONT’D)

No loans were converted to equity in 2004 (2003: Rmb 1,924 million).

The proceeds from the sale of equity securities were Rmb 15,672 million (2003: Rmb 716 million), with

a related gain of Rmb 1,759 million (2003: Rmb 380 million).

These DES transactions were directed by the Chinese Government to assist borrowers in restructuring

their financial positions. Certain of the agreements between the Bank and borrowers express the borrower’s

intention to repurchase, subject to Government approval, the related equity securities from the Bank

within a specified period of time.  This stated intention does not create any legally enforceable

obligation on the borrower to repurchase its equity securities.

Consistent with the nature of these DES arrangements, the Bank periodically discusses with borrowers the

potential terms and timing of repurchases of equity securities transferred to the Bank.  As any repurchases of

equity securities would be subject to Government direction and approval, it is not possible to predict

with any certainty the timing of potential repurchases.  The price at which such securities are repurchased is

determined through negotiation among the Bank, the Chinese Government and the borrower, with

reference to the fair value.

Unlisted equity securities are carried at fair value. These securities were received in connection with the

above mentioned Government directed DES transactions and there are a number of risks and uncertainties

inherent in the determination of fair value.  The disposal of these securities is subject to significant

influence of the Government, which affects the Bank’s assessment of fair value of these securities.

Further, as China is a developing economy, relevant market information is potentially susceptible to

significant volatility.

** Included in debt securities are structured bonds of Rmb 1,531 million (2003: Rmb 1,175 million) issued

by other financial institutions with embedded derivatives, comprising mainly credit default options,

prepayment call options and interest rate options.  The accounting treatment of these embedded

derivatives is described in Note 26.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)



144

�� ! Financial Statements

15 INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONT’D)

The movements in investment securities are summarised as follows:

At 1 January 2003 34,452 497 34,949

Additions 36,613 1,241 37,854

Disposals (sales, redemptions and

maturities) (42,092) - (42,092)

Gain on disposal 421 - 421

Impairment provision (1,242) - (1,242)

At 31 December 2003 28,152 1,738 29,890

At 1 January 2004 28,152 1,738 29,890

Additions 71,350 416 71,766

Disposals (sales, redemptions and

maturities) (60,248) (388) (60,636)

Gain on disposal 1,770 - 1,770

Write-back of impairment provision 333 - 333

Unrealised gain on changes in fair

value 948 - 948

At 31 December 2004 42,305 1,766 44,071

Apart from redemptions and maturities, the Bank has not disposed of any held-to-maturity investment

securities during the year.

Available- Held-
for-sale to-maturity Total

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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2004 2003

Cost 3,144 2,623

Accumulated depreciation (528) (386)

Net book value 2,616 2,237

Construction in progress 80 175

2,696 2,412

16 FIXED ASSETS, NET

The net book value of fixed assets consisted of the following:

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Cost

At 1 January 2004 2,074 303 21 225 2,623

Add: Additions 453 46 1 36 536

Less: Disposals (5) (2) - (8) (15)

At 31 December 2004 2,522 347 22 253 3,144

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2004 129  160 10 87 386

Add: Additions 74 46 3 27 150

Less: Disposals  (1) (2) - (5) (8)

At 31 December 2004 202 204 13 109 528

Net book value

At 31 December 2004 2,320 143 9 144 2,616

At 31 December 2003 1,945 143 11 138 2,237

Office Leasehold Motor
Buildings equipment  improvements vehicles Total
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17 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The movement of deferred income tax assets is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) are attributable to the following items:

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Provision for impaired loans 2,749 2,840

Provision for impairment of equity securities 419 1,236

Provision for accrued interest on Cinda bonds 174 220

Loss on disposal of staff quarters - 413

Provision for doubtful receivables 42 54

Unrealised gain on derivatives (45) (19)

Temporary difference in capitalisation of

transaction cost on issuance of bonds (666) (603)

Temporary difference in net interest income (931) (553)

Unrealised gain on changes in fair value of

available-for-sale investment securities (313) -

Other 60 20

1,489 3,608

2004 2003

2004 2003

At 1 January 3,608 4,566

Income statement charge (Note 8) (1,806) (1,022)

Unrealised gain on changes in fair value of

  available-for-sale investment securities (313) -

Other (Note 24) - 64

At 31 December 1,489 3,608
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17 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONT’D)

The deferred tax charge in the income statement and owner’s equity comprises the following temporary

differences:

18 OTHER ASSETS

19 DUE TO CUSTOMERS

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2004 2003

Current accounts 90,798 62,205

Time deposits 4,993 2,796

Guarantee deposits 144 742

95,935 65,743

2004 2003

Receivable from disposal of equity securities 1,150 -

Other 551 307

1,701 307

Provision for impaired loans 91 903

Provision for equity securities impairment 817 94

Provision for accrued interest on Cinda bonds 46 (220)

Loss on disposal of staff quarters 413 2

Provision for doubtful receivables 12 2

Unrealised gain on derivatives 26 17

Temporary difference in capitalisation of

transaction cost on issuance of bonds 63 81

Temporary difference in net interest income 378 62

Unrealised gain on changes in fair value of

available-for-sale investment securities 313 -

Other (40) 81

2,119 1,022

2004 2003
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20 BORROWINGS FROM OTHER BANKS AND GOVERNMENTS

21 DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE

2004 2003

Borrowings from foreign banks - import credit 39,539 40,442

Borrowings from domestic banks 36,776 5,304

Other borrowings from foreign commercial banks 5,115 3,512

Borrowings from foreign governments 2,182 1,788

83,612 51,046

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Certain financial bonds have provisions which allow the Bank or the bond holders to redeem them prior to

the bonds’ maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its redemption option on a specified date, it is

obligated to pay a higher interest rate on the bond. None of the foreign currency bonds are subject to

redemption prior to their stated maturities.

Certain financial bonds have provisions which allow the bond holders to convert their original bonds to the

specified reference bonds issued by the Bank at pre-determined dates.

One of the financial bonds has provisions which allow the bond holders to extend the bond’s maturity.

Rmb financial bonds issued in 3.24

domestic market (2003: 3.31) 1,232,619 1,050,905

Foreign currency bonds issued in 3.65

domestic market (2003: 3.65) 4,176 4,179

Foreign currency bonds issued in 5.40

international market (2003: 6.92) 18,030 9,322

1,254,825 1,064,406

2004 2003
Average interest rate

per annum (%)
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*   The registered capital of the Bank is Rmb 50 billion, all of which is required to be contributed by the MoF.

As of 31 December 2003, the registered capital has been contributed by the MoF in full.

** Upon the approval by the MoF in 2003, the Bank transferred the capital surplus of Rmb 134 million and

the associated deferred tax effect of Rmb 64 million (Note 17) totaling Rmb 198 million to paid-in

capital.

24 PAID-IN CAPITAL

23 OTHER LIABILITIES

The subordinated debts have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank

chooses not to exercise its redemption option on a specified date, it is obligated to pay a higher interest rate

on the debt.

22 SUBORDINATED DEBTS

2004 2003

Rmb debts issued in domestic market 5.42 (2003: Nil) 20,006 -

Average interest rate
per annum (%)

2004 2003

At 1 January 50,000 49,050

Capital contribution* - 752

Transfer of capital surplus and associated

  deferred tax to paid-in capital** - 198

At 31 December 50,000 50,000

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2004 2003

Income tax payable 5,651 4,143

Other payables 1,183 1,075

Other 1,709 1,533

8,543 6,751
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25 SURPLUS AND WELFARE RESERVES

Within Owner’s Equity, the Bank has established a general surplus reserve, a statutory surplus reserve and

a statutory welfare reserve. The purpose of establishing these reserves is to segregate and restrict the use of

retained earnings that would otherwise be available for distribution to the owner. All transfers from retained

earnings to the reserves and transfers among the reserves must be approved by the MoF.

Upon the approval by the MoF in 2004, the Bank allocated Rmb 540 million (2003: Rmb 3,512 million),

representing 10% (2003: 25%) of its statutory profit after taxes for the year ended 31 December 2003, of

its retained earnings to statutory surplus reserve and statutory welfare reserve, in each case, based on its

statutory financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003.  Once approved by the MoF, the

statutory surplus reserve can be used to fund operating losses or transferred to registered capital, whereas

the statutory welfare reserve represents the amount of future capital expenditures which are designated for

employee welfare purpose.

Upon the approval by the MoF, the Bank transferred from statutory welfare reserve to general surplus

reserve in the amount of Rmb 653 million during 2003. Such transfer relates strictly to the segregation of

amounts within Owner’s Equity and does not affect income.

No profit appropriation to these reserves has been made with respect to net income for the year ended 31

December 2004 as the profit appropriation plan is pending approval by the MoF.

26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following derivative instruments are utilised by the Bank:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase/sell foreign exchanges including undelivered spot

transactions.

Interest rate and currency swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another.  Swaps

result in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates (e.g. fixed rate for floating rate) or a

combination of all these (i.e. cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for certain currency swaps, no

exchange of principal takes place. The Bank’s credit risk represents the potential cost to replace the swap

contracts if counterparties fail to perform their obligation.  This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with

reference to the current fair value, the notional amount of the contracts and the liquidity of the market.  To

control the level of credit risk taken, the Bank assesses counterparties using the same techniques as for its

lending activities.

At 31 December 2004, the Bank had a total of 49 foreign currency forward contracts, currency swap

contracts and interest rate swap contracts outstanding.  These contracts will become due at various dates

through November 2018.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with

instruments recognised on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash

flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Bank’s

exposure to credit or price risks.  The derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable

(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their

terms.  The aggregate contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the

extent to which instruments are favourable or unfavourable and, thus the aggregate fair values of

derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.  The fair values of

derivative instruments held are set out in the following table.

The table above provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amounts and the fair values

of the Bank’s derivative financial instruments outstanding at year-end. These instrument allow the Bank and

its customers to transfer, modify or reduce their foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

As at 31 December 2004

Currency forwards 1,766 100 100

Currency swaps 5,846 343 -

Interest rate swaps 19,025 32 238

Extension option 20,000 - -

Credit default options 538 - -

Total derivative assets/liabilities 475 338

As at 31 December 2003

Currency forwards 4,281 379 379

Currency swaps 2,594 128 -

Interest rate swaps 7,396 - 69

Credit default option 621 - -

Total derivative assets/liabilities 507 448

Contract/notional Fair values
amount Assets Liabilities

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)



152

�� ! Financial Statements

26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Included in held-to-maturity investment securities are structured bonds of Rmb 993 million (2003: Rmb

554 million), which are debt instruments with embedded prepayment call options and interest rate options

(Note 15). The economic characteristics of these embeded derivatives are closely related to the host contracts’

economic characteristics and are not separated from the host contracts for accounting purpose.

Included in available-for-sale securities are structured bonds of Rmb 538 million (2003: Rmb 621 million),

which are debt instruments with embedded credit default options (Note 15).  The economic characteristics

of these embedded derivatives are not closely related to the host contracts’ economic characteristics and

are separated from the host contracts and accounted through trading assets and liabilities at fair value.

Included in debt securities in issue and subordinated debts are bonds with redemption options and conversion

options.  These bonds amounted to Rmb 250,000 million (2003: Rmb 180,000 million) (Notes 21 and 22).

The economic characteristics of these embedded options are closely related to the host contracts’ economic

characteristics and are not separated from the host contracts for accounting purpose. Also included in debt

securities in issue is a bond of Rmb 20,000 million (2003: Nil) (Note 21) with an extension option. The

economic characteristics of this embedded derivative are not closely related to the host contracts’ economic

characteristics and are separated from the host contracts for accounting purpose through trading assets

and liabilities at fair value.

The Bank mostly undertakes its transactions in foreign exchange and interest rate contracts with other

financial institutions. Management has established notional limits of these contracts by counterparties,

industry sectors and countries.  Actual credit exposures and limits are regularly monitored and controlled by

management.

27 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Bank participates in various defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by municipal and

provincial governments under which it is required to make monthly contributions to these plans at rates

ranging from 19% to 29% of the employees’ basic salary or other applicable calculating basis in each

jurisdiction.  The Bank currently has no additional significant cost for the payment of retirement and other

post-retirement benefits of employees other than the monthly contributions described above. The Bank’s

contributions to these pension plans are charged to the income statement in the year to which they relate.

Expenses incurred by the Bank in connection with the retirement benefit plans amounted to Rmb 40 million

for the year (2003: Rmb 31 million).

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2004 2003

Commitments to extend credit:

Corporate bond guarantees 14,500 10,500

Letters of guarantee issued 35,826 993

Letters of credit issued 2,041 6,369

Undrawn credit commitments 766,094 758,219

Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2004:

Future minimum lease payments on operating leases are summarised as follows:

Within one year 54

Between one and five years 56

110
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� �  ! ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

�� ! Organization Structure
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�� !" _^khfkd=abm^oqjbkq

��:�� !"#$%&'()158��� !"#

Add: No.158 Fuxingmennei Street, COSCO Mansion,

Beijing

��(Tel):(010) 66412212

��(Fax):(010) 66412282

��(Zip):100031

�� ! qf^kgfk=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$%&'9�� !"#$%A�

Add: No. +9, Binshui Road, Hexi District, Building A

Huanbohai Development Center, Tianjin

��(Tel):(022) 85681106

��(Fax):(022) 88355858

��(Zip):300061

�� ! eb_bf=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$% 9�� !" B�

Add: No.9, Yuhuaxi Road, Building B Yuyuan Plaza,

Shijiazhuang

��(Tel):(0311) 5288100

��(Fax):(0311) 5288112

��(Zip):050051

�� ! pe^kuf=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$�% 268�

Add: No.268, Fuxi Street, Taiyuan

��(Tel):(0351) 4937222

��(Fax):(0351) 4937224

��(Zip):030002

�� !" fkkbo=jlkdlif^=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$%& 88�

Add�No.88, Xinchengdong Street, Huhhot

��(Tel):(0471) 4690325

��(Fax):(0471) 4690469

��(Zip):010010

�� ! if^lkfkd=_o^k`e

��:�� �!"#$%& 109�

Add: No.109, Qingnian Street, Shenyang

��(Tel):(024) 22953502

��(Fax):(024) 22953371

��(Zip):110014

�� ! a^if^k=_o^k`e

��:�� !"# 15�� !" 25-27�

Add: No.15, Renmin Road, Floor 25-27 ChinaBank

Plaza, Dalian

��(Tel):(0411) 2810147

��(Fax):(0411) 2633839

��(Zip):116001

�� ! gfifk=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$% 3�

Add: No.3, Dongminzhu Street, Changchun

��(Tel):(0431) 8922805

��(Fax):(0431) 8922827

��(Zip):130061

�� ! Organization Structure
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�� !" ebfilkdgf^kd=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$%&' 131�

Add: No.131, Xiangjiang Road, Nangang District, Harbin

��(Tel):(0451) 53907800

��(Fax):(0451) 53907808

��(Zip):150090

�� ! pe^kde^f=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$ 500�� !"#$%&

Add: No.500, Pudongnan Road, CDB Plaza, Shanghai

��(Tel):(021) 58883655

��(Fax):(021) 58883659

��(Zip):200120

�� ! gf^kdpr=_o^k`e

��:�� !"# 188�

Add: No.188, Guangzhou Road, Nanjing

��(Tel):(025) 83276222

��(Fax):(025) 83276204

��(Zip):210024

�� ! webgf^kd=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$ 108�

Add: No.108, Huanchengxi Road, Hangzhou

��(Tel):(0571) 85786066

��(Fax):(0571) 85786094

��(Zip):310009

�� ! ^kerf=_o^k`e

��:�� !"# 246�

Add: No.246, Wuhu Road, Hefei

��(Tel):(0551) 2867889

��(Fax):(0551) 2875868

��(Zip):230061

�� ! crgf^k=_o^k`e

��:�� !"# 111�� !" 32�

Add: No.111, Wusi Road, Floor 32 Yifa Mansion,

Fuzhou

��(Tel):(0591) 87270674

��(Fax):(0591) 87856408

��(Zip):350003

�� ! gf^kduf=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$%& '(5�� !"#$15�

Add: No.5, Nanyi Road, Shengfudayuan, Nanchang

��(Tel):(0791) 6261679

��(Fax):(0791) 6262659

��(Zip):330046

�� ! pe^kalkd=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$ 2-1�� !" 9-11�

Add: No.2-1,Maanshan Road, Floor 9-11 Shandong

Mansion, Jinan

��(Tel):(0531) 5198100

��(Fax):(0531) 5198282

��(Zip):250002
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�� ! Organization Structure

�� ! ebk^k=_o^k`e

��:�� !"# 28�

Add: No.28 Nongye Road, Zhengzhou

��(Tel):(0371) 5795400

��(Fax):(0371) 5795444

��(Zip):450008

�� ! er_bf=_o^k`e

��:�� �!"#$%66��� !A�8-11�

Add: No.66, Zhongbei Road, Floor 8-11 Jinjin Garden

A, Wuhan

��(Tel):(027) 87326608

��(Fax):(027) 87326563

��(Zip):430071

�� ! erk^k=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$465-467�� !"#$%7-8�

Add: No.465-467,Furongzhong Road, Floor 7-8 South

Building of Jinyuan Plaza, Changsha

��(Tel):(0731) 5164307

��(Fax):(0731) 5163160

��(Zip):410007

�� ! dr^kdalkd=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$%&'116-118�� !"20-23�

Add: No.116-118, Tiyudong Road, Floor 20-23

Fortune Square, Tianhe District, Guangzhou

��(Tel):(020) 38932908

��(Fax):(020) 38932800

��(Zip):510620

�� ! pebkwebk=_o^k`e

��:�� �!"#$%&'() 13-15�

Add: Shennanzhong Road, Floor 13-15, International

Science and Technology Plaza, Shenzhen

��(Tel):(0755) 25987810

��(Fax):(0755) 25987800

��(Zip):518033

�� ! dr^kduf=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$ 38-2�� !" 23�

Add: No.38-2, Minzu Street, Floor 23 Taian Mansion,

Nanning

��(Tel):(0771) 5879990

��(Fax):(0771) 5878601

��(Zip):530022

�� ! e^fk^k=_o^k`e

��:�� !�"# 81�� !"

Add: No.81, Binhai Street, Nanyang Mansion, Haikou

��(Tel):(0898) 68551933

��(Fax):(0898) 68551933

��(Zip):570105

�� ! `elkdnfkd=_o^k`e

��:�� !"# 68�� !"#

Add: No.68, Zourong Road, Daduhui Plaza, Chongqing

��(Tel):(023) 63748112

��(Fax):(023) 63748100

��(Zip):400010



159

�� ! pf`er^k=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$%& 47�

Add: No.47 of the 4th, Renminnan Road, Chengdu

��(Tel):(028) 85248399

��(Fax):(028) 85248383

��(Zip):610041

�� ! drfwelr=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$ 18�� !"# 15�

Add: No.18, Zhongshanxi Road, Floor 15 Pacific

Plaza, Guiyang

��(Tel):(0851) 8651588

��(Fax):(0851) 8651559

��(Zip):550001

�� ! vrkk^k=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$ 158�

Add: No.158, Dongfengxi Road, Kunming

��(Tel):(0871) 3634094

��(Fax):(0871) 3634001

��(Zip):650031

�� ! pe^kuf=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$ 2�� !"#$%&

Add: No.2 Gaoxinyi Road, CDB Plaza, Xi'an

��(Tel):(029) 87660578

��(Fax):(029) 87660581

��(Zip):710075

�� ! d^kpr=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$ 507�

Add: No.507, Binhedong Road, Lanzhou

��(Tel):(0931) 8854771

��(Fax):(0931) 8836380

��(Zip):730030

�� ! ufkgf^kd=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$% 2�

Add: No.2, Dongfeng Road, Urumqi

��(Tel):(0991) 2335001

��(Fax):(0991) 2335002

��(Zip):830002

�� ! kfkduf^=_o^k`e

��:�� !"#$ 43� 4�

Add: No.43, Building 4 Xinhuadong Street, Yinchuan

��(Tel):(0951) 6010487

��(Fax):(0951) 6010483

��(Zip):750004

�� ! nfkde^f=_o^k`e

��:�� !"�# 15�

Add�No.15, Wusixi Road, Xining

��(Tel):(0971) 6307463

��(Fax):(0971) 6307463

��(Zip):810008
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�� !"elkd=hlkd=obmobpbkq^qfsb=lccf`b

��:�� !�"#1�� !"#$%&33��

3307-3308�

Add: Suite 3307-3308 33/F One International Finance

Center, No.1 Harbor View Street, Central,

Hong Kong

��(Tel):(+852) 28016218

��(Fax):(+852) 25304083

�� ! Organization Structure




